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6/17/16. 
Commission’s opening brief filed 7/15/16; appellees’ brief filed 8/1/16; 

Commission’s reply brief filed 8/12/16. 
Oral argument heard 8/19/16. 

FTC v. PENN STATE HERSHEY MEDICAL CENTER, No. 16-2365 (3d Cir.); No. 1:15-cv- 
2362 (M.D. Pa.) 

Parties:  The Penn State Hershey Medical Center 
 PinnacleHealth System 

Assigned Attorneys:   William Efron (NER) 
 Ryan Harsch 
 Jared Nagley 
 Jonathan Platt 
 Gerald Stein 
 Geralyn Trujillo
 Nancy Tumblacer 
 Theodore Zang 
 Joel Marcus (OGC) 
 Michele Arington 

Alleged Conduct:  Action for preliminary injunction for violations of Section 5 of the FTC   
Act and Section 7 of the Clayton Act in connection with a proposed  

                                   hospital merger. 

Status:  Complaint filed 12/9/15. 
TRO entered 12/9/15. 

           Order denying Commission’s motion for preliminary injunction entered  
5/9/16. 



                      

 

     

 

 

 
 
 
 
  

 
 

  
 

 
 

                                        

 

 

                         
                         
                                                 

Alleged Conduct:  Action for preliminary injunction for violations of Section 5 of the FTC 
Act and Section 7 of the Clayton Act in connection with the proposed 
merger between Superior Plus Corporation and Canexus Corporation. 

Status:    Complaint filed 6/27/16. 
   TRO entered 6/28/16. 

Joint motion to dismiss the complaint filed 7/15/16. 
Order dismissing the complaint entered 7/20/16. 

(B) Preliminary Injunctions (Other) 

(None pending) 

(C) Permanent Injunctions/Consumer Redress* 

FTC v. 4 STAR RESOLUTION, LLC, No. 1:15-cv-112 (W.D.N.Y.) 

Parties: 4 Star Resolution, LLC d/b/a Consumer Recovery Group d/b/a  Four Star 
    Capital Services d/b/a Four Star Resolution Services, LLC d/b/a FS  

Mediation Group 
                                    Profile Management, Inc. 
                                    International Recovery Service, LLC 

Check Solutions Services, Inc. 
                                    Check Fraud Service, LLC 
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FTC v. ABBVIE, INC., No. 2:14-cv-5151 (E.D. Pa.) 

Parties:  AbbVie, Inc. 
Abbott Laboratories 

                                    Unimed Pharmaceuticals, LLC 
Besins Healthcare, Inc. 

                                    Teva Pharmaceuticals USA, Inc. 

Assigned Attorneys:  Markus Meier (BC) 
                                    Patricia M. McDermott 

Kara Monahan 
Peter Taylor 

Alleged Conduct:   Unfair methods of competition in violation of Section 5(a) of the FTC Act 
arising from baseless patent infringement lawsuits against potential 
generic competitors. 

Status:         Complaint filed 9/8/14. 
 Defendants’ motion to dismiss filed 11/12/14; Commission’s brief in  

    opposition filed 12/12/14. 
Order granting defendants’ motion to dismiss Count II of the complaint  

entered 5/6/15. 
Commission’s motion for entry of judgment under Rule 54(b) filed 6/5/15; 

response in opposition by Abbott Laboratories, Abbvie, Inc. and 
Unimed Pharmaceuticals filed 6/25/15; Commission’s reply filed    
7/2/15. 

Order holding Commission’s pending Rule 54(b) motion in abeyance   
entered 7/8/15. 

   Commission’s motion for reconsideration of dismissal filed 7/20/15;  
defendant’s response filed 7/31/15; reply filed 8/7/15. 

Motion for reconsideration denied 8/25/15. 
Motion to direct entry of partial final judgment under Rule 54(b) denied  

8/26/15. 

FTC v. ACTAVIS, INC. (formerly WATSON PHARMACEUTICALS, INC.), No. 12-416 (S. 
Ct.); Nos. 12-16488, No. 10-12729 (11th Cir.); No. 1:09-CV-00955 (N.D. Ga.), formerly  
No. 2:09-CV-00598 (C.D. Cal.) 

Parties:  Watson Pharmaceuticals, Inc. 
Par Pharmaceuticals Companies, Inc. 
Paddock Laboratories, Inc. 
Solvay Pharmaceuticals, Inc. 

Assigned Attorneys:  Markus Meier (BC) 
Saralisa Brau 
Cynthia A. Liebes (SER) 
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USA, LLC, and Premier Marketing International, LLC entered  
12/3/15. 

Motion for entry of stipulated final judgment and permanent injunction as  
to defendants Fariborz Fard, Shirin Imani, and Global Marketing 
Enterprises, Inc. filed 12/3/15; motion denied 12/4/15. 

Default judgment as to defendants All Us Marketing, Fariborz Fard, GRR  
Financial Services, Global Marketing Enterprises, Shirin Imani and  
Christian Serna entered 3/21/16. 



 

 

 

 
  

   

 

  
    

 

 

 
 

   

  

 

 
 

 

 
   

Motion for partial summary judgment by defendant filed 2/2/16;  
Commission’s opposition filed 2/22/16; defendant’s reply filed 
3/2/16; order granting motion entered 4/26/16. 

Motion for summary judgment by Commission filed 2/2/16; defendant’s  
opposition filed 2/23/16; Commission’s reply filed 2/26/16; order 
granting motion entered 4/26/16. 

FTC v. AMERICAN HANDICAPPED & DISADVANTAGED WORKERS, INC., No. 2:16-cv-
11780 (E.D. Mich.) 

Parties: American Handicapped and Disadvantaged Workers, Inc. d/b/a AHDW 
and AHDW, Inc. 

American Handicapped, Inc. d/b/a AH and AH, Inc. 
   Adli Dasuqi 

Assigned Attorneys: Amy Hocevar (ECR) 
   Harris Senturia 

Alleged Conduct: Deceptive acts and practices in violation of Section 5(a) of the FTC Act,  
the Telemarketing Sales Rule, and the Unordered Merchandise  
Statute in connection with the sale of household goods at inflated prices by 
misrepresenting that company’s employees are handicapped. 

Status:   Complaint filed 5/19/16. 
Stipulated order for permanent injunction and monetary judgment entered  

6/8/16. 

FTC v. AMERICAN INDUSTRIAL ENTERPRISES, LLC, No. 1:16-cv-00281 (D. Md.) 

Parties:  American Industrial Enterprises, LLC 
   Easton Chemical Supply, Inc. 
   Lighting X-Change Company, LLC 

LMS Lighting and Maintenance Solutions, LLC 
   Werner International Enterprises, Inc. 
   Benjamin Cox 
   Vincent Stapleton
   John Tharrington 
   TBC Companies, Inc. (relief defendant) 

Assigned Attorneys:  Jonathan Kessler (ECR) 
   Maria Del Monaco
   Michael Rose 

Alleged Conduct:  Deceptive acts and practices in violation of Section 5(a) of the FTC Act, 
   the Telemarketing Sales Rule and the Unordered Merchandise Statute in 

connection with the sale of nondurable office or cleaning supplies through 

13  



                      

 

     

 

 

    

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

                                    

   interstate telephone calls. 

Status:    Complaint filed 2/1/16. 
Ex parte TRO with asset freeze entered 2/2/16.

   Stipulated preliminary injunction as to defendants John Tharrington and 
    Vincent Stapleton entered 2/29/16. 
   Preliminary injunction as to defendants Lighting X-Change Company, 

American Industrial Enterprises, LLC, Easton Chemical Supply, 
Inc., LMS Lighting & Maintenance Solutions, LLC and Werner 
International Enterprises entered 2/29/16. 

Settlement agreement with defendants Lighting X-Change, Vincent 
Stapleton and John Tharrington filed 9/23/16. 

FTC v. AMG SERVICES, INC., No. 14-16468 (9th Cir.); No. 2:12-cv-00536 (D. Nev.) 

Parties:  AMG Services, Inc. 
Red Cedar Services, Inc., d/b/a 500FastCash 
SFS, Inc., d/b/a OneClickCash 
Tribal Financial Services, Inc., d/b/a Ameriloan, d/b/a UnitedCashLoan, 

d/b/a USFastCash, d/b/a Miami Nation Enterprises.  
AMG Capital Management, LLC 
Level 5 Motorsports, LLC 
Lead Flash Consulting, LLC 
Black Creek Capital Corporation 
Broadmoor Capital Partners, LLC  
Muir Law Firm, LLC 
Scott A. Tucker 
Blaine A. Tucker 
Timothy J. Muir 
Don E. Brady 
Robert D. Campbell 
Troy L. LittleAxe 
Park 269 LLC 
Kim C. Tucker 

Assigned Attorneys:  Helen Wong (BCP/FP)            
Jason Schall 

Alleged Conduct:  Deceptive acts and practices in violation of Section 5, the Truth in Lending 
Act, and the Electronic Fund Transfer Act, in connection with offering and 
extending credit, payday loans, and the collection of those loans.  

Status:    Complaint filed 4/2/12.            
Motion to dismiss by all defendants filed 5/25/12; Commission’s response  

filed 6/11/12. 
Partial withdrawals of motions to dismiss filed 10/15/12 and 10/16/12.   
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Stipulated preliminary injunction entered 12/27/12. 
Commission’s amended motion for partial summary judgment filed 

3/7/13; defendants’ responses filed 3/25/13.   
                                    Motion for legal determination on tribal sovereign immunity by 

defendants AMG Services, Inc., Red Cedar Services, Inc., SFS, 
Inc., and Tribal Financial Services filed 4/8/13; cross-motion for 
legal determination by defendant Troy Little Axe filed 4/10/13; 
Commission’s response filed 4/19/13. 

Commission’s amended complaint filed 4/12/13.  
Report and recommendation by magistrate that Commission’s motion for 

partial summary judgment and defendant’s motion for legal 
determination on tribal sovereign immunity be granted in part and 
denied in part entered 7/16/13. 

Joint motion for permanent injunction and judgment as to defendants 
AMG Services, SFS, Inc., MNE Services, Inc., AMG Capital 
Management, LLC, Level 5 MotorSports, LLC, LeadFlash 
Consulting, LLC, Black Creek Capital Corp., Broadmoor Capital 
Partners, LLC, Scott A. Tucker, Blaine A. Tucker, Don E. Brady, 
Robert D. Campbell, and Troy L. Little Axe, Jr. filed 7/18/13. 

Motion for summary judgment by Commission filed 9/30/13; Muir 
defendants’ opposition filed 11/29/13; remaining defendants’ 
opposition filed 12/4/13; Commission’s reply filed 12/20/13. 

Motions for summary judgment by defendants filed 9/30/13; 
Commission’s opposition filed 12/4/13; defendants’ reply filed 
12/20/13. 

Order granting joint motion for permanent injunction and judgment as to 
defendants AMG Services, SFS, Inc., MNE Services, Inc., AMG 
Capital Management, LLC, Level 5 MotorSports, LLC, LeadFlash 
Consulting, LLC, Black Creek Capital Corp., Broadmoor Capital 
Partners, LLC, Scott A. Tucker, Blaine A. Tucker, Don E. Brady, 
Robert D. Campbell, and Troy L. Little Axe, Jr. entered 10/8/13. 

Report and recommendation by magistrate that Commission’s motion for 
summary judgment be granted in part and denied in part, and that 
defendant’s motion for summary judgment be denied, entered 
1/28/14; defendant’s objections filed 2/14/14; Commission’s 
response filed 3/2/14. 

Order adopting magistrate’s 7/16/
Order adopting ma385 -ate’s 7/16/



                      

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
                                  
                             

Stipulated permanent injunction and monetary judgment as to defendants 
AMG Services and MNE Services, Inc. entered 1/23/15. 



 

                      

 

     

 

                                     

 

 

 
   

   

 

 

 

  
 

 

                               

Assigned Attorneys:  Collot Guerard (BCP/MP) 
Svetlana Gans 

                                    Michael D. Bergman (OGC) 

Alleged Conduct:  Deceptive acts and practices in violation of Section 5 and the 
Telemarketing and Consumer Fraud Abuse and Prevention Act in 
connection with work-from-home business opportunity scheme. 

Status:    Complaint filed 2/10/14. 
TRO entered 2/11/14. 
Stipulated preliminary injunction and asset freeze as to defendant David 

Bevan entered 3/20/14. 
Commission’s motion to dismiss Sonnenberg defendants’ counterclaim
            filed 5/27/14; motion granted without prejudice on 1/30/15. 
Order granting Motion to Dismiss Sonnenberg defendants' counterclaim

 entered 4/9/15. 
Amended complaint filed 5/14/15. 
Notice of death of defendant Chad Huntsman filed 6/9/15. 
Permanent injunction and monetary judgment as to David Bevan entered  

6/24/15. 
Stipulated settlement order as to defendants Apply Knowledge, Evertex 

Solutions, Suppler Source, and Ken Sonnenberg entered 2/17/16. 



                      

 

                      

 

  

                                    
                                     
                                    

 
  

 

    
                                     

 

 
 

                                  
  
 
 

 

 

 

            4/9/15; Commission’s response filed 4/23/15; AT&T Mobility’s
 reply filed 4/30/15. 

Order granting AT&T Mobility’s motion to appeal entered 5/15/15. 



 

 

 

 

 

                              
 

                                    

 

 
 

   

 

  

Assigned Attorneys:  Helen Wong (BCP/FP)
 Greg Ashe 
Jason Adler 

Alleged Conduct:  Deceptive acts or practices in violation of Section 5(a) of the FTC Act in 
connection with the marketing and sale of Bitcoin mining machines. 

Status:          Complaint filed 9/15/14. 
TRO entered 9/18/14. 

                                    Motions to dismiss entered 10/10/14. 
      Order denying motions to dismiss entered 12/23/14. 

Motion to intervene by Kyle Alexander and Dylan Symington filed  
            9/28/14; denied 10/3/14; notice of appeal filed 10/3/14. 
Appellants’ brief filed 11/24/14; Commission’s responsive brief filed  

1/16/15. 
Commission’s motion to dismiss counterclaims for lack of jurisdiction 

filed 3/10/15; BF Labs’ opposition filed 3/30/15; Commission’s 
reply filed 4/13/15; BF’s Labs’ motion to file surreply in 
opposition filed 4/17/15; Commission’s opposition filed 4/28/15. 

            Order granting BF Labs’ motion for leave to file a surreply entered    
6/10/15. 

Order granting Commission’s motion to dismiss counterclaims entered 
6/15/15. 

Opinion by court of appeals affirming district court’s order denying  
            motion to intervene entered 8/25/15. 
Order staying case for 120 days to consider settlement  

agreement entered 11/2/15. 
Stipulated final orders for permanent injunction and monetary judgment as 

to defendants BF Labs Inc., Sonny Vleisides, and Darla Drake 
entered 2/25/16. 

Stipulation of dismissal of Nasser Ghoseiri entered 3/7/16. 

FTC v. BIG DOG SOLUTIONS, LLC, No. 1:16-cv-06607 (N.D. Ill.) 

Parties:  Big Dog Solutions, LLC d/b/a Help Desk National and Help Desk Global 
PC Help Desk US, LLC d/b/a Help Desk National and Help Desk Global 

   Inbound Call Specialist, LLC 



                      

 

     

 

   

    

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 
 

   State of Florida (Plaintiff) 

Assigned Attorneys:  James Davis (MWR) 
   Matthew Wernz 

Alleged Conduct:  Deceptive acts and practices in violation of Section 5(a) of the FTC Act,  
the Telemarketing Sales Rule, and the Florida Deceptive and Unfair Trade  
Practices Act in connection with the advertising, marketing, distribution 
and sale of computer security and technical support services. 

Status:   Complaint filed 6/24/16. 
Ex parte TRO with asset freeze, appointment of a receiver, other equitable  

relief entered 6/28/16. 
   Stipulated preliminary injunctions as to all defendants entered 7/28/16. 

FTC v. BLUEHIPPO FUNDING, LLC, Nos. 11-374, 16-1599 (2d Cir.); No. 1:08-CV-01819 
(S.D.N.Y.) 

Parties:  BlueHippo Funding, LLC 
BlueHippo Capital LLC 
Joseph K. Rensin 

Assigned Attorneys:  Amanda C. Basta (BCP/ENF) 
Michael D. Bergman (OGC) 
David C. Shonka 

Alleged Conduct:   Contempt proceeding for violations of a permanent injunction in 
connection with the sale of personal computers, televisions, and other 
consumer electronics. 

Status:         Complaint filed 2/22/08. 
Stipulated final judgment and order for permanent injunction entered 

4/9/08. 
Motions for contempt and to modify permanent injunction against  

BlueHippo Funding, LLC, BlueHippo Capital LLC, and Joseph K. 
Rensin filed 11/17/09. 

                        Order to show cause why defendants should not be held in contempt  
entered 11/16/09; modified 11/18/09. 

Defendants’ memoranda of law filed 12/7/09 and 12/11/09; Commission’s 
reply memoranda of law filed 12/11/09 and 12/12/09. 

Trial held 2/9/10-2/11/10; closing argument held 2/19/10. 
Order granting motion for contempt entered 7/27/10; judgment entered 

7/30/10. 
Commission’s motion to amend/correct judgment and order filed 8/27/10; 

defendants’ opposition filed 9/24/10; Commission’s reply filed 
10/8/10. 
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Order denying Commission’s motion to amend/correct judgment and order     
entered 12/1/10. 

Commission’s notice of appeal re contempt order filed 1/28/11. 
Notice of appeal filed 2/1/11. 
Commission’s brief filed 5/16/11. 
Appellee’s brief filed 8/15/11. 
Commission’s reply brief filed 9/12/11. 
Argument held 2/23/12. 
Opinion vacating the district court’s judgment and remanding the case to 

the district court entered 8/12/14. 
   Appellee Joseph Rensin’s petition for rehearing filed 9/25/14. 
 Order denying Joseph Rensin’s petition for rehearing entered 11/17/14. 
Oral argument before the district court concerning applicability of 

presumption of reliance held 6/4/15. 
                                    Opinion and order ruling that Commission is entitled to presumption of 

consumer reliance entered 11/6/15. 
 Final judgment imposing compensatory contempt sanctions entered  

4/19/16. 
Notice of appeal by Rensin filed 5/18/16. 
Appellant’s opening brief filed 8/29/16; Commission’s response brief  

due 11/28/16. 

FTC v. BOOST SOFTWARE, INC., No. 9:14-cv-81397 (S.D. Fla.) 

Parties:  Boost Software, Inc. 
  Vast Tech Support, LLC d/b/a OMG Tech Help, d/b/a OMG Total 
   Protection, d/b/a OMG Back Up, d/b/a Softwaretechsupport.com 

OMG Tech Help, LLC 
Success Capital, LLC 
Jon Paul Holdings, LLC 

                                    Amit Mehta 
                                    Elliot Loewenstern

 Jon-Paul Vasta 
Mark Donohue 

Assigned Attorneys:  J. Ronald Brooke, Jr. (BCP/MP) 
Russell S. Deitch 

Alleged Conduct:  Deceptive and unfair acts and practices in violation of Section 5(a) of the 
FTC Act and the Telemarketing Sales Rule in connection with the 
marketing, advertising, and sale of tech support services. 

Status:          Complaint filed 11/10/14. 
TRO entered 11/12/14. 
TRO extended to all defendants entered 11/26/14. 
 Order denying preliminary injunction against Boost Software and Amit 

21  



 

 



 

 

 
 

 
   

  
 

       

 

Assigned Attorneys: 

Alleged Conduct: 

Status: 

   AMD Financial Network, Inc. 
   SBM Management, Inc. 
   Media Urge, Inc. 
   Adageo, LLC 
   Calenergy, Inc. 
   Kai Media, Inc. 
   Insight Media, Inc. 
   Alon Nottea 
   Motti Nottea
   Doron Nottea 
   Igor Latsanovski 
   Oz Mizrahi 
   Roi Reuveni 
   Kristopher Bond 
   Charlene C. Koonce 
   Focus Media Solutions, Inc.
   Secured Commerce, LLC 
   Secured Merchants, LLC 
   USM Products, Inc. 
   Merchant Leverage Group 
   DMA Media Holdings, Inc. 
   Shalita Holdings, Inc. 

All Star Beauty Products, Inc. 
   Alan Argaman 
   Paul Medina 
   Chargeback Armor, Inc. (relief defendant) 

Reid Tepfer (SWR) 
Luis Gallegos 
Raymond McKown  

Deceptive acts or practices in violation of Section 5 of the FTC Act, 
the Restore Online Shoppers’ Confidence Act (ROSCA), and the 
Electronic Fund Transfer Act (EFTA). 

Complaint filed 6/15/15. 
TRO entered 6/16/15. 
Stipulated preliminary injunction as to Oz Mizrahi entered 7/23/15.  
Preliminary injunction as to Alon Nottea and Roi Reveni entered 7/23/15. 





 

                      

     

 

 
 

 
  
 
 
 
 

 

   
 

    

  
 

 
    

 

 

 

   
 

 

Opportunity Rule in connection with the marketing of work-at-home 
programs. 

Status:  Complaint filed 10/29/15. 
Stipulated preliminary injunction entered 10/30/15. 
Ex parte TRO with asset freeze entered 11/3/15. 
Motion for entry of default judgment against all defendants filed 1/7/16. 
Order to show cause entered 3/22/16. 
Motion for entry of default judgment withdrawn 4/28/16. 

FTC v. CAPITOL NETWORK DISTANCE LEARNING, No. 2:16-cv-00350 (D. Ariz.) 

Parties:  Capitol Network Distance Learning Programs, LLC 
Capital Network Digital Licensing Programs, LLC 

   Veritas Sales, Inc. 
Nicholas A. Pollicino a/k/a Nick Pollicino

   Anthony J. Calvien 
   Adam F. Pollicino 



                      

     

 

 

                               

 

 

                                     
 

 
 

 

                                   
 

 

                              

          Complaint filed 7/7/14. 
     Stipulated preliminary injunction entered 8/21/14.  

Amended complaint adding defendant Tuan Dinh Duong filed 4/2/15. 
Motion for summary judgment by the Commission filed 9/4/15; 

opposition by defendant Tuan Dinh Duong filed 10/2/15; 
Commission’s reply filed 10/8/15; order granting Commission’s 
motion as to Duong entered 3/1/16. 

Commission’s motion for default judgment against defendants CD Capital 
Investments, LLC, CD Capital, LLC, GDS Information Services, 
Inc, Christian D. Quezada, and Gabriel D. Stewart filed 3/24/16; 
order granting in part Commission’s motion entered 8/22/16. 

Permanent injunction and order for equitable monetary relief as to 
defendants CD Capital Investments, LLC, CD Capital, LLC, GDS 
Information Services, Inc, Christian D. Quezada, and Tuan Dinh 
Duong entered 8/22/16. 

FTC v. CHEMENCE, No. 1:16-cv-228 (N.D. Ohio) 

Parties:  Chemence, Inc. 

Assigned Attorneys:  Julia Solomon Ensor (BCP/ENF) 
Colin D. A. MacDonald 

Alleged Conduct:  Deceptive practices in violation of Section 5(a) of the FTC Act in 
connection with misleading “made in USA” claims.   

         Complaint filed 2/1/16. 

FTC v. CLICK4SUPPORT, LLC, No. 15-3937 (3rd Cir.); No. 2:15-cv-05777 (E.D. Pa.) 

Parties:  Click4Support, LLC 
     iSourceUSA d/b/a Click4Support d/b/a UBERTECHSUPPORT 

                                   Innovacion, LLC d/b/a Click4Support Tech Services 
Spanning Source, LLC d/b/a Click4Support 
Bruce Bartolotta a/k/a Bruce Bart 
George Saab 
Chetan Bhikhubhai Patel 
Niraj Patel 

                                   Innovacion Research Private Limited 
Abhishek Gagneja 
Rishi Gagneja 

Assigned Attorneys:  Fil M. De Banate (ECR) 
Christopher D. Panek 
Nicole J. Guinto 
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Alleged Conduct:  Deceptive acts and practices in violation of 5(a) and the Telemarketing  
                                  Sales Rule in connection with the defendants’ telemarketing scheme

 purporting to offer technical support services. 

Status:  Complaint filed 10/26/15. 
                                  Ex parte TRO with asset freeze and other equitable relief entered 10/27/15.
                                  Preliminary injunction entered 11/10/15. 

Notice of appeal (15-3937) filed 12/8/15. 
Mediation hearing held 3/1/16. 

      Commission’s amended complaint filed 5/17/16. 
Appellants’ opening brief filed 4/29/16; Commission’s answering brief 

filed 7/5/16; order granting motion to stay briefing schedule 
pending outcome of consent discussions entered 7/27/16. 

                                  Stipulated preliminary injunction as to defendants Innovacion, LLC,    
           Abhishek Gagneja, and Rishi Gagneja entered 9/13/16.  

Motion for default judgment as to defendant iSourceUSA, LLC filed  
9/2/16. 

FTC v. COMMERCE PLANET, INC., Deceptiv



 

 

 

 

 

   

amended answer adding counterclaim against Commission filed 
5/4/10. 

Motion to dismiss Charles Gugliuzza’s counterclaim filed 5/25/10; 
Gugliuzza’s opposition filed 6/21/10; Commission’s reply filed 
6/28/10. 

Motion to dismiss third-party defendant Superfly Advertising, Inc. filed 
6/22/10; Gugliuzza’s opposition filed 7/19/10; reply by third-party 
defendant Superfly Advertising, Inc. filed 7/26/10. 

Order granting third-party defendant Superfly Advertising’s motion to 
dismiss entered 8/5/10. 

Amended third-party complaint against counter defendants Superfly 
Advertising, Inc. (an Indiana corporation) and Superfly 
Advertising, Inc. (a Delaware corporation) by defendant Charles 
Gugliuzza filed 8/25/10. 

Motion to dismiss first amended third-party complaint by third-party 
defendant Superfly Advertising, Inc. filed 9/15/10; order granting 
motion entered 10/27/10. 

Second amended third-party complaint against counter defendants 
Superfly Advertising, Inc. (an Indiana corporation) and Superfly 
Advertising, Inc. (a Delaware corporation) by defendant Charles 
Gugliuzza filed 11/16/10. 

Motion to dismiss second amended third-party complaint by third-party 
defendant Superfly Advertising, Inc. filed 11/29/10; order granting 
motion entered 12/28/10. 

Motion for summary judgment by defendant Charles Gugliuzza filed  
4/22/11. 

First amended complaint for permanent injunction and other equitable  
relief filed 6/29/11. 

                                    Defendant Charles Gugliuzza’s motion for summary judgment filed                    
7/27/11; 

   Commission’s opposition filed 8/22/11; reply filed 8/29/11; order 
    denying motion for summary judgment entered 9/8/11. 

Trial held 1/31/12-2/28/12. 
Post-trial briefs submitted 3/23/12. 
Appellant filed his reply 1/31/14. 
Memorandum of decision in favor of the Commission and directing 

Commission to file proposed permanent injunction and judgment 
entered 6/22/12. 

Final order and permanent injunction as to all defendants entered 7/17/12. 
Defendant Charles Gugliuzza’s notice of appeal filed 11/13/12.  
Appellant’s opening brief filed 7/5/13; Commission’s answering brief  

filed 11/18/13; appellant’s reply brief filed 1/31/14. 
Notice of defendant Charles Gugliuzza’s appeal to the 9th Circuit filed 

9/6/14. 
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Order dismissing appeal as duplicative of pending appeal 12-57064 
entered 9/19/14; Gugliuzza’s motion for reconsideration filed 
9/25/14; motion denied 3/3/16. 

Notice regarding appeal (No. 8:14-cv-01529) from bankruptcy court’s 
ruling that Gugliuzza’s debt to the Commission is 
nondischargeable entered 9/22/14. 

Gugliuzza’s opening brief in bankruptcy appeal filed 12/5/14; 
Commission’s answering brief due 1/16/15; Gugliuzza’s reply 
brief due 1/30/15. 

Oral argument in merits appeal held 2/9/15.  
Oral argument in district court regarding bankruptcy appeal held 2/26/15.  
Order by district court affirming in substantial part and reversing in part  

the bankruptcy court’s order on nondischargeability entered 
3/12/15. 

Notice of appeal by Gugliuzza filed 4/2/15. 
                                    Appellant’s opening brief filed 8/7/15; Commission’s brief filed 11/5/15;   

appellant’s reply brief filed 12/8/15. 
Opinion of the Ninth Circuit affirming district court’s determination of                               

liability and authority under Section 13(b) to hold Gugliuzza 
jointly and severally liable for consumer losses, but vacating in 
part and remanding for clarity whether basis for monetary award 
was joint and several liability, entered 3/3/16. 

Petition for rehearing en banc filed 4/18/16; petition denied 5/16/16. 
Modified final judgment and order for permanent injunction as to 

Defendant Gugliuzza entered 8/25/16. 
Petition for certiorari filed 9/14/16. 
Oral argument in Ninth Circuit bankruptcy appeal scheduled for 12/7/16. 

FTC v. CONSTRUCT DATA PUBLISHERS, No. 13-cv-1999 (N.D. Ill.) 

Parties:    Construct Data Publishers d/b/a Fair Guide 
Wolfgang Valvoda 
Susanne Anhorn 

Assigned Attorneys:  Guy G. Ward (MWR) 
 Roberto Menjivar 
 Joseph Einikis 

Alleged Conduct:  Deceptive acts and practices 



 

     

 

 
 
 
 
 
  
 

 
 

 

 

 
 

 
 

 
   
 

 
 

 
 
 

 

 

 

 

                               

Motion to vacate default judgment filed by all defendants 3/11/14.  
Order vacating default judgment entered 12/9/14.  
Commission’s motion to reconsider filed 1/6/15; motion denied 3/16/16.  
Order granting stay as to defendant Valvoda in light of his recent   
            indictment entered 4/10/15. 
Default judgment as to defendant Construct Data entered 3/16/16. 

FTC v. CONSUMER ASSISTANCE, LLC, No. 1:16-cv-21528 (S.D. Fla.) 

Parties: Consumer Assistance, LLC f/k/a Back Office Law, LLC d/b/a Consumer 
Assistance Project 

Consumer Assistance Project Corp. f/k/a Non-Profit Guardian Services, 
Inc. f/k/a Back Office Law Project, Corp. 

Palermo Global, LLC 
 Chastity Valdes 

State of Florida (Plaintiff) 

Assigned Attorneys: Adam Wesolowski (BCP/FP) 
 Matthew Wilshire 

Alleged Conduct: Deceptive acts and practices in violation of Section 5(a) of the FTC Act, 
the Telemarketing Sales Rule, the Credit Repair Organizations Act, and  
the Florida Deceptive and Unfair Trade Practices Act in connection with 
the marketing and sale of student loan debt relief and credit repair  
services. 

Status: Complaint filed 4/19/16. 
Stipulated preliminary injunction entered 6/8/16. 
Default judgment as to all defendants entered 6/27/16. 

FTC v. CONSUMER COLLECTION ADVOCATES, CORP., No. 15-14437 (11th Cir.); No.  
0:14-cv-62491 (S.D Fla.) 

Parties:       Consumer Collection Advocates, Corp. 
Michael R. Ettus 

Assigned Attorneys:  Barbara E. Bolton (SER) 
   Matthew Hoffman (OGC) 

Alleged Conduct:  Deceptive practices in violation of Section 5(a) of the FTC Act and the 
Telemarketing Sales Rule in connection with recovery services claiming 
to collect funds consumers previously lost to telemarketing fraud. 

Status:          Complaint filed 11/3/14. 
     Stipulated preliminary injunction entered 11/17/14. 

Commission’s motion for summary judgment filed 7/24/15; defendant’s  
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 response filed 8/17/15; reply filed 8/27/15. 
Summary judgment granted 9/08/15. 

  Permanent injunction and monetary judgment entered 9/28/15. 
Notice of appeal filed 10/2/15. 
Appellants’ opening brief filed 3/24/16; Commission’s answering brief  

filed 6/6/16. 
Opinion affirming district court’s order of summary judgment for the 

Commission entered 8/23/16. 

FTC v. CONSUMER HEALTH BENEFITS ASS’N, No. 1:10-CV-03551 (E.D.N.Y.) 

Parties: Consumer Health Benefits Association  John Schwartz 
Jeffery Burman                                    Barbara Taube 
Century Senior Services Rita B. Werner 
Guarantee Trust Life Insurance           Ronald K. Werner 
Richard Holson III Vantage America Solutions 
Louis Leo Windi Tow 
National Association for Americans    
National Benefits Consultants, LLC 
National Benefits Solutions, LLC 

Assigned Attorneys:  Karen A. Dahlberg (NER) 

Alleged Conduct:  Deceptive acts and practices in violation of Section 5 and the 
Telemarketing Sales Rule in connection with defendants’ marketing, 
distribution, and sale of medical discount plans. 

Status:         Complaint filed 8/03/10. 
Stipulation and order modifying ex parte TRO as to defendant Louis Leo 

entered 8/25/10. 
Stipulation and order modifying ex parte TRO as to defendants Ron 

Werner and Rita Werner entered 8/25/10. 
Stipulated preliminary injunction order as to defendant Louis J. Leo 

entered 9/21/10. 
Stipulated preliminary injunction as to defendants Ron Werner and Rita 

Werner entered 10/01/10. 
Preliminary injunction as to corporate defendants entered 10/5/10. 
Clerk’s entry of default as to corporate defendants 11/15/10. 
Stipulation and order modifying the preliminary injunction order as to 

defendants Louis Leo, Rita and Ronald Werner entered 3/31/11. 
Commission’s motion for leave to amend complaint naming 

additional defendants filed 5/06/11; magistrate judge’s decision 
granting motion entered 8/18/11. 

Appeals of magistrate judge’s decision by proposed defendants filed            
9/06/11. 
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Assigned Attorneys:  Miriam R. Lederer (BCP/ENF) 
Jonathan Cohen 
John D. Jacobs (WRLA) 

Alleged Conduct:  Deceptive practices in violation of Section 5(a) of the FTC Act, the 
Mortgage Assistance Relief Services Rule, and the Telemarketing Sales 
Rule in connection with the marketing and sale of mortgage assistance 
relief services. 

Status:    Complaint filed 4/14/15. 
Ex parte TRO with asset freeze entered 4/16/15. 
Preliminary injunction entered 5/13/15. 
Default as to C.C. Enterprises, Inc. entered 7/24/15. 
Motion for stipulated permanent injunction as to Chad  

    Caldaronello, Justin Moreira, and Brian Pacios filed 10/30/15. 
Stipulated orders for permanent injunction and monetary judgment against 

    defendants Justin Moreira and Chad Caldaronello entered 11/4/15. 
Stipulated orders for permanent injunction and monetary judgment against 

    defendants Derek Nelson and Cortney Gonsalves entered 12/4/15. 
Order granting Commission’s motion for summary judgment entered  

2/24/16. 
Final judgment and permanent injunction against defendant Denny Lake  

entered 2/24/16; amended final judgment and permanent injunction 
entered 3/22/16. 

Default judgment and final order against defendants C.C. Enterprises, Inc. 
and D.N. Marketing Inc. entered 6/1/16. 

FTC v. DEVRY EDUCATION GROUP, INC., No. 2:16-cv-579 (C.D. Cal.) 

Parties:  Devry Education Group, Inc. f/k/a DeVry, Inc. 
   Devry University, Inc. 
   Devry/New York, Inc. 

Assigned Attorneys:  Christina V. Tusan (WRLA) 
   John D. Jacobs 
   Thomas  J.  Syta
   Barbara Chun
   Faye Chen Barnouw 
   Yan Fang (WRSF) 
   Sarah E. Schroeder 

Alleged Conduct:  Deceptive acts or practices in violation of Section 5(a) of the FTC Act in  
   connection with the advertisement and promotion of defendant’s degree  

programs. 

Status:    Complaint filed 1/27/16. 
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   Defendants’ motion to dismiss filed 3/10/16; Commission’s opposition  
brief filed 4/4/16; reply filed 4/18/16; order denying motion to  
dismiss entered 5/9/16. 

FTC v. DIRECTV, INC., No. 3:15-cv-01129 (N.D. Cal.) 

Parties:  DirecTV, Inc. 
DirecTV, LLC 

Assigned Attorneys:  Eric D. Edmondson (WRSF) 
Boris Yankilovich 

                                    Erika R. Wodinsky 
Jacob A. Snow 

                                    Raymond E. McKown (WRLA) 
Stacy R. Procter 

   Kenneth Abbe 

Alleged Conduct:  Deceptive acts and practices in violations of Section 5(a) of the FTC Act 
and Section 4 of the Restore Online Shoppers’ Confidence Act in 
connection with the advertising, marketing, and sale of multi-channel 
video programming subscription service. 

Status:          Complaint filed 3/11/15. 
                                    Motion for partial summary judgment by DirecTV filed 10/13/15;  

Commission’s response filed 11/24/15; DirecTV’s reply filed  
1/25/16. 

                                     Oral argument on partial motion for summary judgment held 3/4/16. 
                                     Commission’s motion for partial motion for summary judgment filed                    
                                                9/22/16; order denying partial motion for summary judgment                     

entered 9/23/16. 

FTC v. DISCOUNTMETALBROKERS, INC., No. 2:16-cv-2112 (C.D. Cal.) 

Parties: DiscountMetalBrokers, Inc. f/k/a Discount Gold Brokers, Inc., Discount  
        Discount Metal Brokers, Inc. d/b/a Discount Gold Brokers, North 

                                                American Discount Gold.com 
                                     Donald Lee Dayer d/b/a Lee Dayer 

Katherina Dayer 
                                     Michael Berman 

Assigned Attorneys:  Megan A. Bartley (BCP/ENF) 
Elizabeth J. Averill 
Maricela Segura (WRLA) 

Alleged Conduct:  Deceptive acts or practices in violation of Section 5(a) of the FTC Act  
                                    and the Merchandise Rule in connection with the advertisement and sale  
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 of gold and silver. 

Status:  Complaint filed 3/29/16. 

FTC v. DOTAUTHORITY.COM, INC., No. 0:16-cv-62186 (S.D. Fla.) 

Parties:   DOTAuthority.com, Inc. d/b/a On-line Registration 
                                   DOTFilings.com, Inc. 

Excelsior Enterprises International, Inc. d/b/a DOTFilings.com, UCR  
          Registration, UCR Filings, James P. Lamb & Associates 

                                   JPL Enterprises International, Inc. d/b/a DOTAuthority.com,  
         DOTFilings.com, On-line Registration, Registration Services  

                                                Online, James P. Lamb & Associates 
                                   James P. Lamb 

Uliana Bogash a/k/a Juliana Bogash, Yuliana Bogash, Yana Bogash,  
Uliana Vogash 

Assigned Attorneys:  Karen Hobbs (BCP/MP) 
Danielle Estrada 
Connell McNulty 

Alleged Conduct:   Deceptive acts and practices in violation of Section 5 of the FTC Act and  
                                    Section 4 of the Restore Online Shoppers’ Confidence Act in connection   
                                    with the use of deceptive marketing methods and sales tactics to trick  

 consumers into paying Defendants for so-called registration services. 

Status:          Complaint filed 9/13/16. 
Ex parte TRO entered 9/19/16. 

                                    Preliminary injunction entered 9/29/16. 

FTC v. E.M. SYSTEMS & SERVICES, LLC, No. 8:15-cv-1417 (M.D. Fla.) 

Parties:  E.M. Systems & Services, LLC 



                      

 

 

 

    
 

 
   
 

   

 

 

 

                                     

 
  

 

 

   James F. Berland 
   Andrew S. Padnick  

Assigned Attorneys:  Nicholas May (SER) 
Anna Burns 

Alleged Conduct:  Deceptive acts and practices in violation of Section 5(a) of the FTC Act 
and the Telemarketing Sales Rule in connection with a debt relief scam. 

Status:    Complaint filed 6/16/15. 
   TRO entered 6/17/15. 
   Stipulated preliminary injunction entered 6/30/15. 

Order referring case to mediation entered 8/19/15. 
   Amended complaint filed 12/21/15. 

FTC v. EMERICA MEDIA CORPORATION, No. 16-35719 (9th Cir.); Nos. 9:15-cv-57; 9:13- 
cv-00003 (D. Mont.)  

Parties:  Emerica Media Corporation 
                                    Global Voice Mail, Ltd.  

Network Assurance, Inc. 
                                    Techmax Solutions, Inc.  

Voice Mail Professionals, Inc. 
Steven V. Sann 
Terry D. Lane, a/k/a Terry D. Sann 
Nathan M. Sann 
Robert M. Braach
 Bibliologic, Ltd. (relief defendant) 

                                    American eVoice, Ltd.  
FoneRight, Inc. 
HearYou2, Inc. 
SecuraDat, Inc. 

Assigned Attorneys:  Richard McKewen (NWR) 
Michael Mora (BC/ENF) 
Michael D. Bergman (OGC) 

Alleged Conduct:  Deceptive acts and practices in violation of Section 5 in connection with  
recurring charges on consumers’ monthly telephone billsT0 d 615.3992 -1.15 TdvAct 



 

      

 

 

 

                      

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Order staying the case pending the resolution of a parallel criminal  
 prosecution entered 9/24/13. 
Stipulated permanent injunction order and monetary relief as to defendant  

Nathan M. Sann entered 11/25/14. 
Notice of appeal by Steven Vincent Sann from bankruptcy court order 

converting case from chapter 11 to chapter 7 proceeding filed 
5/13/15. 

Appellants’ brief filed 7/13/15; Commission’s response brief filed 9/2/15; 
appellants’ reply brief filed 10/13/15. 

Steven Sann sentenced to 24 months in prison 7/17/2015. 
            Order granting the Commission’s motion to modify the asset freeze and 

  motion to lift the stay entered 8/20/15. 
Stipulated permanent injunction and monetary judgment as to relief 

defendant Bibliologic entered 3/31/16. 
Order approving and enforcing stipulated permanent injunction and 

monetary judgment as to relief defendant Bibliologic entered                 
8/9/16. 

Notice of appeal by Steven Sann filed 9/6/16. 
Appellant’s brief due 12//15/16; Commission’s responsive brief due 

1/17/16. 

FTC v. ENDO PHARMACEUTICALS, No. 2:16-cv-01440 (E.D. Pa.) 

Parties:        Endo Pharmaceuticals, Inc. 
Endo International, PLC 
Teikoku Pharma USA, Inc. 
Teikoku Seiyaku Co., Ltd. 
Watson Laboratories, Inc. 
Allergan, PLC 
 Impax Laboratories, Inc.  

Assigned Attorneys:  Marcus H. Meier (BC) 
Bradley S. Albert 
J. Maren Schmidt 
 Eric M. Sprague  
Synda Mark  
Daniel S. Bradley  

                                    Jamie R. Towey  

Alleged Conduct:  Unfair acts or practices in violation of Section 5(a) of the  
                                    FTC Act and an acquisition in violation of Section 7 of the Clayton Act in 
                                    connection with anticompetitive reverse-payment agreements. 

Status:          Complaint filed 3/30/16. 
   Stipulated order for permanent injunction entered 4/7/16.    

Motion to dismiss filed 7/12/16; Commission’s opposition filed 9/2/16; 
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reply filed 9/30/16. 

FTC v. EWING, No. 2:14-cv-0683 (D. Nev.) 

Parties:  Crystal Ewing 
Classic Productions, LLC 

                                    Health Nutrition Products, LLC d/b/a W8-B-Gone, Quick & Easy 
Howard Raff, a/k/a Howard Bruce 
David Raff 
Omni Processing Center 

                                    MBE Management, LLC 
Shirley Murphy 
Ronald Boyde 

                                    Global Access Management Systems, Inc. 
Ricki Black 

Assigned Attorneys:  Alejandro Rosenberg (BCP/ENF) 
Elsie B. Kappler 
Korin Ewing Felix 

Alleged Conduct:  Violations of Sections 5(a) and 12 of the FTC act in connection with the  
 advertising, marketing and sale of purported weight loss pills.  

Status:          Complaint filed 5/1/14. 
  Default judgment as to defendants Ricki Black and Global Access 

       Management Systems, Inc. entered 6/23/14; defendants’ motion to 
set aside entry of default judgment filed 6/26/14; Commission’s 
stipulation of no opposition to Ricki Blacki only filed 7/8/14;  

   Stipulated summary judgment as to Ricki Black entered 7/22/15.  
   Commission’s motion for summary judgment filed 7/1/15.  

Default judgment as to Omni Processing Center and MBE Management,  
LLC entered 7/18/14. 

Responses to Commission’s motion for summary judgement filed 7/23/15;  
                        Commission’s reply filed 8/10/15. 

Stipulated consent judgments as to Crystal Ewing, Classic Productions  
LLC, and Ricki Black filed 11/2/15. 

Stipulated final judgment and order for permanent injunction as to Crystal  
Ewing and Classic Productions entered 3/16/16. 

Stipulated final judgment and order for permanent injunction as to Ricki  
Black entered 3/17/16. 

Order granting Commission’s motion for summary judgment entered  
3/30/16. 

FTC v. FEDERAL CHECK PROCESSING, INC., No. 1:14-cv-0122 (W.D.N.Y.) 

Parties:  Federal Check Processing, Inc. 

40  



     

                       

 

 

 
 

 
 

                                     

                               
 

     

     

 

 

 
 

 

 Federal Recoveries, LLC 
 Federal Processing Services, Inc.  
Federal Processing, Inc.  
United Check Processing , Inc.  
Central Check Processing, Inc.  
Central Processing Services, Inc.  

                                    Nationwide Check Processing, Inc.  
                                    American Check Processing, Inc.  

State Check Processing, Inc.  
Check Processing, Inc.  
US Check Processing, Inc.  

                                    Flowing Streams, F.S., Inc.  
Mark Briandi  

                                    William Moses  
Empowered Racing, LLC, Relief Defendant  

Assigned Attorneys:  



 

 
 

 
 

 
   

   
   
 

 
 

     
 

 
  

    

    

 
   

   

   

    

 
 

 

   Case stayed until 2/25/16.  
   Order extending stay of case entered 3/1/16.  



 

 

 

 

Assigned Attorneys: 

VIP Savings, LLC, d/b/a VIP Savings Center 
DJD Distribution, LLC 
MDCC, LLC, d/b/a Method Direct Call Center 
Chapnick, Smuckler & Chapnick, Inc. 
Brandon Chapnick 
Keith Smuckler 
Danelle Miller 
Jason Miller 
458 Media LLC 
Alpha Brands, LLC 
Blu Stella, LLC 
Brilliant Skin LLC 
Discount Provisions L.L.C. 
Extamax, LLC 
F12 Media LLC 
Flex Formulas, LLC 
GCB Marketing LLC 
Luminous Skin LLC 
Men’s Health Formulas, LLC 
Metabolic Labs, LLC 
Miracle Male, LLC 
Moringa Marketing LLC 
Northbound Marketing LLC 
Skinny 7 LLC 
Wellness Labs, LLC 
Yacon Marketing LLC 
Barrel Roll, LLC 
BSC Marketing, LLC 
Cherry Hill Marketing, LLC 
CSA Ventures, LLC 
Diet Concepts, LLC 
Health Products Direct LLC 
KMS Marketing LLC 
Natural Products Direct LLC 
Northern Health Products LLC 
Pure and Natural Health Products LLC 
Pure and Simple Health Products LLC 
Radiant Skin LLC 
Shimmering Skin LLC 
Tindy Films LLC 
Wellness Products, LLC 
Method Films, Inc.   

Danielle Estrada (BCP/MP) 
Melissa Dickey 
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Alleged Conduct:   Deceptive acts and practices in violation of Sections 5 and 12 of the FTC 
Act, the Electronic Fund Transfer Act, the Restore Online Shoppers 



 

     

 

 

 
  

    

 

 
 

                                

                                   

                                  

                                          

                                   

FTC v. IDEAL FINANCIAL SOLUTIONS, No. 2:13-cv-00143 (D. Nev.) 

Parties:  Ideal Financial Solutions, Inc. 
Ascot Crossing, LLC 
Bracknell Shore, Ltd. 
Chandon Group, Inc. 
Avanix, LLC 
Fiscal Fitness, LLC 
Steven Sunyich 
Michael Sunyich 

                                    Christopher Sunyich 
Shawn Sunyich 
Melissa Sunyich Gardner 
Kent Brown 
Shane Mosher 
Jared Mosher 

                                    Thomas W. McNamara  

Assigned Attorneys:  Megan Bartley (BCP/ENF)
                                    Richard Michael Waller  

Alleged Conduct:  Deceptive acts and practices in violation of Section 5 in connection with a 
scheme to debit and charge consumers without authorization.  

Status:          Complaint filed 1/28/13.  
TRO entered 1/30/13. 

                                    Preliminary injunction entered 2/15/13.  
                                    FTC’s amended complaint and motion for preliminary injunction and asset 

freeze against Jared Mosher filed 4/10/13.    
                                    Preliminary injunction and asset freeze against Jared Mosher entered    

5/10/13. 
Settlement agreement between the Commission and Shawn Sunyich filed 

3/12/14. 
    Commission’s motion for summary judgment filed 3/19/14. 

Consent judgment and permanent injunction against defendants Kent    
Brown and Shawn Sunyich entered 6/5/14. 

 Default judgment entered against Ascot Crossing, LLC, Avanix, LLC,  
            Bracknell Shore, Ltd., Chandon Group, Inc., Fiscal Fitness, LLC,  

and Ideal Financial Solutions entered 6/6/14. 
 Order granting summary judgement on liability but denying summary  
            judgment on remedy as to defendants Steven Sunyich, Chris    

      Sunyich, Michael Sunyich, Melissa Sunyich Gardner, and Jared      
Mosher entered 6/30/15. 

 Commission’s motion for default judgment against corporate defendants 
filed 7/30/15; order granting motion for default judgment in part 
filed 2/23/15. 
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Commission’s motion for summary judgment for monetary and injunctive  
relief against Steven Sunyich, Chris Sunyich, Jared Mosher, 
Michael Sunyich, and Melissa Sunyich Gardner filed 7/30/15; 
responses by Michael Sunyich, Melissa Sunyich Gardner, Steven 
Sunyich filed 8/20/15; response to motion for summary judgment 
by Christopher Sunyich filed 8/24/15; reply filed 9/3/15. 

Clerk’s judgment for equitable monetary relief against defendants   
Christopher Sunyich, Melissa Sunyich Gardner, Michael Sunyich, 
Steven Sunyich, Ascot Crossing, Avanix, Bracknell Shore, 



 

 
  
  
                              
 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 
 

   
 

   
   

     
 
 
 

Order granting joint motion to stay proceedings as to defendants PC  
Cleaner, Inc., Netcom3 Global, Inc., Netcom 3, Inc., and Cashier  
Myricks until July 15, 2016 entered 5/6/16. 

      Order granting motion to stay entered 9/16/16. 

FTC v. INFUSION MEDIA, INC, No. 14-16485 (9th Cir.); No. 2:09-cv-01112 (D. Nev.) 

Parties: Infusion Media, Inc., d/b/a Google Money Tree, Google Pro, Internet  
    Income Pro and Google Treasure Chest 
   West Coast Internet Media, Inc., d/b/a Google Money Tree, Google Pro, 
    Internet Income Pro and Google Treasure Chest 
   Two Warnings, LLC 
   Two Part Investments, LLC 
   Platinum Teleservices, Inc. 
   Jonathan Eborn 
   Stephanie Burnside 
   Michael McLain Miller
   Tony Norton 

Assigned Attorneys:  Benjamin Theisman (BCP/ENF)
   Michael Davis
   Michael Bergman (OGC) 

Alleged Conduct:  Violations of Section 5(a) of the FTC Act, the Electronic Fund Transfer 
Act and Regulation E, in connecti



                                                  
                           

                           
                            

                               
              

                    

                     
                          

                                 

                       

                    
          

                           
                                  

                         

               

                              
                 

                                       

                     
                     

                             
                

 

 

 
 
 

 

 

 
 

 

FTC v. JEREMY JOHNSON, Nos. 11-17265, 11-17267, 12-15778, 12-16213, 13-15768, 13-
15778, 13-15822 (9th Cir.); No. 2:10-CV-02203 (D. Nev.) 

Parties: Jeremy D. Johnson  Anthon Holdings Corp. 
Big Bucks Pro, Inc. Blue Net Progress, Inc. 
Blue Streak Progressing, Inc. Bolt Marketing, Inc. 
Bottom Dollar, Inc.  Bumble Marketing, Inc. 
Business First, Inc. Business Loan Success, Inc. 
CPA Upsell, Inc. CS Processing, Inc. 
Cloud Nine Marketing, Inc. Cold Bay Media, Inc. 
Costnet Discounts, Inc.  Cutting Edge Processing, Inc.  
Diamond J Media, Inc.             EBusiness First, Inc. 
Ebusiness Success, Inc.  Elite Debit, Inc. 
Employee Plus, Inc.  Excess Net Success, Inc. 
Duane Fielding Fiscal Fidelity, Inc. 
Fitness Processing, Inc. Funding Search Success, Inc. 
Funding Success, Inc. GG Processing, Inc. 
GGL Rewards, Inc.                Highlight Marketing, Inc. 
Hooper Processing, Inc. I Works, Inc. 
Internet Business Source, Inc. Internet Economy, Inc. 
Internet Fitness, Inc. JRB Media, Inc. 
Jet Processing, Inc. Andy Johnson 
Loyd Johnston Scott Leavitt 
Lifestyles for Fitness, Inc. Market Funding Solutions, Inc. 
Mist Marketing, Inc. Money Harvest, Inc. 
Monroe Processing, Inc. Scott Muir 
Net Business Success, Inc. Net Commerce, Inc. 
Net Discounts, Inc. Net Fit Trends, Inc. 
Net Success, Inc. Network Agenda, LLC 
Optimum Assistance, Inc.  Bryce Payne 
Kevin Pilon Power Processing, Inc. 
Premier Performance, Inc.          Pro Internet Services, Inc. 
Razor Processing, Inc. Rebate Deals, Inc. 
Revive Marketing, Inc. Ryan Riddle 
Simcor Marketing, Inc.  Terrason Spinks 
Success Marketing, Inc.           Summit Processing, Inc. 
Tran Voyage, Inc. TranFirst, Inc. 
Unlimited Processing, Inc.  Xcel Processing, Inc. 
eCom Success, Inc. 

Assigned Attorneys: Collot Guerard (BCP/MP) 
J. Ronald Brooke 
Burke Kappler (OGC) 
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Alleged Conduct:  Deceptive acts and practices in violation of Section 5, the Electronic Fund 
Transfer Act, and Regulation E in connection with the advertisement of 
government grants and money-making opportunities. 

Status:         Complaint filed 12/21/10. 
TRO and asset freeze entered 1/13/11. 
Preliminary injunction entered 2/10/11. 
Notice of interlocutory appeal by defendant Jeremy Johnson (Appeal No.  
           11-17265) filed 9/22/11; dismissed 6/27/12.  
Notice of interlocutory appeal by defendants Duane Fielding, Anthon 

Holdings Corp., and Network Agenda, LLC (Appeal No. 11-
            17265) filed 9/23/11; dismissed on appellant’s motion 11/17/11.  
Notice of appeal of order granting first omnibus motion for sale (Appeal   
            No. 12-15778) filed 4/6/12; appellant’s opening brief due but not  
            filed 7/16/12; dismissed by 9th Cir. 11/5/12.  
Notice of appeal of order granting receiver’s motion for fees (Appeal No.  
            12-16213) filed 5/21/12; appellant’s opening brief due but not filed 

9/7/12. 
Appeal dismissed for failure to prosecute 12/20/12. 
Notices of appeal of order clarifying preliminary injunction (Nos. 13- 
            15768 and 13-15778) filed 4/18/13 and 4/19/13; appeals  
            consolidated and appellants’ opening brief filed 5/17/13;  
            Commission’s responsive brief filed 6/28/13; reply brief filed  

7/15/13. 
Notice of appeal (No. 13-15822) filed 4/24/13; appellants’ opening brief  
            filed 6/26/13; Commission’s answering brief filed 8/7/13.  
Motion for summary judgment against all liability and relief defendants 

filed 11/26/13. 
Motion for partial summary judgment by relief defendants filed 11/29/13. 
Voluntary dismissal of appeal 13-15822 entered 1/21/14. 
Oral argument in appeals 13-15768 and 13-15778 held 2/3/14. 
Stipulated final order for permanent injunction against defendants Big 

Bucks Pro, Inc., Blue Net Progress, Inc., Bolt Marketing, Inc., 
Business Loan Success, Inc., CS Processing, Inc., GGL Rewards, 
Inc., Highlighting Marketing, Inc., Mist Marketing, Inc., Net 
Discounts, Inc., Optimum Assistance, Inc., Razor Processing, Inc., 
Simcor Marketing, Inc., and Scott Muir entered 4/7/14. 

Decision by the Ninth Circuit affirming the district court’s ruling that 
certain assets nominally owned by nonparties are subject to the 
preliminary injunction and asset freeze entered 4/8/14. 

Order granting in part and denying in part Commission’s motion for 
summary judgment entered 3/31/15. 

Brief by the Commission regarding revised consumer injury amount filed  



                      

 

 

  



 

                                  

                                  
 

 

 

 

 
  

 
 
 

 
 

 
 

  

 

 

 Ex parte TRO entered 7/11/14. 
Preliminary injunction with asset freeze entered as to all defendants   

8/1/14. 
  Motion to dismiss complaint entered 8/26/14; opposition to motion 

filed 9/4/14. 
                                    Amended complaint filed 12/22/14.                                     

  Motion to dismiss amended complaint filed 1/13/15; Commission’s 
opposition filed 1/30/15. 

Order granting preliminary injunction, as to defendants Fortress Law  
            Group, Redstone Law Group, Rogelio Robles, and Edward  
            William Rennick, III entered 2/6/15. 
Notices of appeal of Rogelio Robles and Edward Rennick filed 3/20/15  

and 3/23/15. 
Order dismissing appeal as to defendant Rogelio Robles entered 6/2/15. 
Order denying motion to dismiss entered 7/28/15. 
Counterclaim by Liberty & Trust Law Group of Florida, LLC, Lanier  
            Law, LLC, and Michael W. Lanier filed 8/19/15.; Commission’s  
            opposition filed 10/29/15. 
Motion to vacate TRO filed by defendant Michael W. Lanier  
             8/25/15; Commission’s opposition filed 9/10/15. 
Commission’s motion for summary judgment filed 12/29/15; defendant  

Lanier’s opposition filed 1/20/16; Lanier’s supplemental  
opposition filed 3/10/16; Commission’s reply filed 3/29/16. 

Motion for partial summary judgment by defendant 
Lanier and three related corporate defendants filed 12/30/15;  
Commission’s opposition filed 1/27/16; reply by defendant  
Lanier and three related corporate defendants filed 2/2/16.  

Final order for permanent injunction and monetary judgment as to Lanier  
Law, LLc, Fortress Law Group, LLC, Liberty & Trust Law Group,  
Fortress Law Group, PC, Michael Lanier, and Rogelio Robles 
entered 8/12/16. 

Stipulated order for permanent injunction and monetary judgment as to  
Surety Law Group LLP, Redstone Law Group, LLC, and Edward 
William Rennick III entered 8/12/16. 

FTC v. LAPTOP & DESKTOP REPAIR, LLC, No. 1:16-cv-3591 (N.D. Ga.) 

Parties: Laptop & Desktop Repair, LLC d/b/a cashforiphones.com, 
cashforlaptops.com, ecyclebest.com, smartphonetraders.com, sell- 
your-cell.com 

   Vadim Olegovich Kruchinin a/k/a Vadim Kruchin, David Kruchin, David  
Vadim Kruchin, David Kruch 

   State of Georgia (Plaintiff) 

Assigned Attorneys:  Anna Mirshak Burns (SER) 
   Hans Christian Clausen 
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Alleged Conduct: Deceptive acts and practices in violation of Section 5 of the FTC Act and  
Georgia’s Fair Business Practices Act in connection with the operation of  
numerous websites promising to pay consumers “top dollar” for used  
electronic devices. 

Status:   Complaint filed 9/26/16. 



 

 

 
 

    

 
 

  

    
 

 



 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

   
 

   

   
 

    

    

 

Alleged Conduct: Deceptive acts and practices in violation of Section 5(a) of the FTC Act, 
the FTC’s Telemarketing Sales Rule, and the Unordered Merchandise 
Statute. 

Status: Complaint filed 12/04/15. 
TRO entered 12/04/15. 
Preliminary injunction entered 12/30/15. 
Amended complaint filed 2/23/16. 
Commission’s motion for summary judgment filed 9/23/16. 
Trial scheduled for 2/13/17-3/3/17. 

FTC v. LIFE MANAGEMENT SERVICES OF ORANGE COUNTY, INC., No. 6:16-cv- 
00982 (M.D. Fla.) 

Parties:  Life Management Services of Orange County, Inc. 
   Loyal Financial and Credit Services LLC d/b/a FOC Credit and Reward  

Services



 

 
 

 
 

 
 

  

 



 

 
    

 
 

 

   

      

      

 

 

  
                                

                               
                            
                            
                                 
                               
                                 
                                
                                
                                
                                 
                               
                            
                               
                                   
                              
                               
                              



 

 

 
 

                                 
                                
                               
                                      

 
 
 

 

 

                                
                             
                                    
                                            

                                  

 

Alleged Conduct:  Unfair and deceptive practices in violation of Section 5 of the FTC Act in 
connection with placing unauthorized 



     

 

 
 

   

   

   
 

    
 

 

Alleged Conduct:  Violations of Section 5 of the FTC Act, the Telemarketing Sales Rule and 
the Unordered Merchandise Statute in connection with sale of light bulbs 
and cleaning supplies. 

Status:    Complaint filed 7/21/14. 
TRO entered 7/21/14. 
Order granting preliminary injunction with continued appointment of 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

    

 

Dino Mitchell, a/k/a Dino Jones 
Clinton Rackley a/k/a Clinton Fosse 
Lance Himes, a/k/a Raymond Homes, a/k/a Lance Haist 
Leary Darling 
Donna Duckett, d/b/a D&D Marketing Solutions 
Della Frost, d/b/a ZoomDocs LLC 
Christopher Grimes, d/b/a Elite Marking Strategies 
Alannah M Harre, d/b/a National Marketing Group 
Ronald W. Hobbs, d/b/a Ron Hobbs & Associates, d/b/a Sales Academy 

USA LLC 
Janine Lilly, d/b/a Doc Assistant 
Michael Mcintyre, d/b/a McIntyre Marketing 
Benny Montgomery, d/b/a Montgomery Marketing 
Virginia Rios, d/b/a V&R Marketing Solutions 
Kendrick Thomas, d/b/a KT Advertising 
Global Network Marketing, LLC 
Precise Payroll Services, LLC 
Strategic Media Advertising, LLC 
Cynthia Miller, individually and as manager of Global Network Marketing 

and Precise Payroll Services, LLC, a/k/a Cynthia Metcalf 

Assigned Attorneys:  Rhonda Perkins (BCP/MP) 
                                    James Evans 

Alleged Conduct:  Violations of Section 5(a) of the FTC Act, the Business Opportunity Rule, 
and the Telemarketing Sales Rule concerning a telemarketing scheme

   offering consumers business opportunities under a variety of names. 

Status:          Complaint filed 8/5/13. 
TRO entered 8/5/13. 
Preliminary injunction order entered 8/19/13. 
Preliminary injunction as to defendants Cordell Bess, Clinton Rackley and 

Ronald Hobbs entered 9/13/13. 
Motion to hold defendants Lukeroy Rose, Cordell Bess, Ronald Hobbs, 

Clinton Rackley, Della Frost, Richard Frost, Donna Duckett, 
Janine Lilly, and Dino Mitchell in contempt filed 10/18/13. 

Amended complaints adding defendants Cynthia Miller, Global Network 
Marketing, LLC, Prices Payroll Services, LLC, and Strategic 
Media Advertising, LLC filed 1/9/14.  

Preliminary injunction modified 2/13/14.  
Preliminary injunction order with asset freeze and other equitable relief as 

to defendants Cynthia Miller, Global Network Marketing, LLC, 
and Precise Payroll Service, LLC entered 4/28/14. 

Default as to Global Network Marketing, LLC, Cynthia Miller, Precise 
Payroll Services, LLC, and Strategic Media Advertising, LLC 
entered 4/30/14. 
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Second motion to hold defendant Lukeroy Rose in contempt filed 6/10/14. 
Order holding defendant Lukeroy Rose in civil contempt of preliminary 

Injunction entered 8/27/14. 
Motion to strike defendant Benny Montgomery’s answer to complaint 

filed 11/21/14. 
Order granting motion to strike defendant Benny Montgomery’s answer 

and directing clerk to enter default against Benny Montgomery 
entered 12/10/14. 

Motion for summary judgment against defendants Lukeroy Rose, Solana 
DePaola, Lance Himes, Leary Darling, Jennifer Beckman, William 
Claspell and Clinton Rackley filed 12/15/14. 

Application for entry of default as to Montgomery filed 12/17/14. 
Motion to stay all further proceedings as to defendants Himes and Claspell 

until 4/27/15 filed 1/13/15. 
Motion to stay all further proceedings as to defendant Jennifer Beckman 

until 4/27/15 filed 1/20/15. 
Order granting stay until 4/27/15 as to defendants Beckman, Himes and 

Claspell entered 1/21/15. 
Motion to stay all further proceedings as to defendant Solana DePaola 

until 4/27/15 filed 2/11/15. 
Order granting stay until 4/27/15 as to defendant Solana DePaola entered 

2/12/15. 
Order granting in part summary judgment against defendants Rose, 

Darling and Rackley entered 3/17/15. 
Final judgment and orders for permanent injunction and equitable 

monetary judgment as to Lukeroy K. Rose, Clinton Rackley and 
Leary Darling entered 6/3/15. 

Amended stipulated orders for permanent injunction and monetary 
judgment as to Jennifer Beckman, Solana DePaola, William D. 
Claspell and Lance Himes entered 6/3/15. 

                                    Orders for permanent injunction and monetary judgment as to Donna F.  
                                                Duckett and Ronald W. Ho
[(until 4)5                           S-1.15 vi5>>BDC 
240 Tc -0.0008 Tw -3 -1.15 Td55 Td
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FTC v. MYTEL INTERNATIONAL, INC.,  No. 2:87-cv-07259 (C.D. Cal.) 

Parties:         Mytel International, Inc.
 Gilbert N. Michaels 
Gerald Feldman 

Assigned Attorneys:  Reenah L. Kim (BCP/ENF)
   Elsie  B.  Kappler

 John D. Jacobs (WRLA)
 Mark S. Hegedus (OGC) 



                      

 

     

 

   
 

 



 

 

 

 
 

 

Defendants’ notices of appeal filed 7/11/14 and 7/14/14.   
Order by district court imposing coercive contempt sanction and directing 

that defendants Jared Wheat and Stephen Smith be incarcerated 
until they comply with product recall entered 9/2/14. 

Petition for mandamus by defendants Wheat and Smith seeking to 
overturn coercive contempt order filed 9/4/14; denied 9/4/14. 

Notice of appeal from coercive contempt order and emergency motion for 
a stay by defendants Wheat and Smith filed 9/4/14; Commission’s 
opposition filed 9/5/14; motion for stay denied 9/5/14; motion to 
voluntarily dismiss appeal filed 9/8/14; appeal no. 14-13972 
dismissed 10/15/14. 

Motion to purge contempt defendants of contempt filed 9/26/14; 
Commission’s opposition filed 9/26/14. 



 

     

 

 

 

 
 

 

                               

            

 

                                   

                                 
                                  

   

Assigned Attorneys:  Korin Ewing Felix (BCP/ENF) 
John D. Jacobs (WRLA) 
Leslie Melman (OGC) 
Jack Metzler 

Alleged Conduct:  Unfair practices in violation of Section 5 in connection with the offering   
and sale of online check services. 

Status:          Complaint filed 9/19/06.  
Final order for permanent injunction and other equitable relief entered 

1/7/09. 
Notice of appeal by defendants filed 1/16/09. 
Motion for order to show cause why Thomas Villwock, James M. 

Danforth, G7 Productivity Systems, Inc., iProlog Corporation, and 
FreeQuick Wire Corporation should not be held in contempt filed 
10/15/09. 

Order requiring Commission to show cause why contempt motion should             
            not be dismissed entered 10/16/09; Commission’s response filed 

10/21/09. 
Order by district court staying contempt proceedings pending appeal  

entered 1/19/10. 
Opinion affirming district court order entered 5/14/10; amended 6/15/10. 
Contempt proceedings reopened 5/14/10.    
Final order finding defendants Neovi, Productivity Systems, Thomas 

Villwock, and James M. Danforth in contempt entered 7/11/12.  
Notice of appeal by defendants filed 9/7/12; Commission’s cross appeal  

filed 9/21/12. 
Order by the Ninth Circuit requiring defendants to show cause why  
            appellate jurisdiction exists entered 9/24/12. 

     Commission’s memorandum on jurisdiction filed 10/24/13.  
                                    Order dismissing appeal for lack of appellate jurisdiction entered 1/22/13.  

                        Contempt hearing in district court held 8/12/13.  
Order finding that defendants failed



 

     

 

    

 

 

 

 

    

                                    
                                    

                               
                                   
   

   

Appellant’s opening brief filed 11/1/16; Commission’s responsive brief 
due 12/1/16. 

FTC v. NPB ADVERTISING, INC., No. 8:14-cv-1155 (M.D. Fla.) 

Parties:  NPB Advertising, Inc., d/b/a Pure Green Coffee 
                                    Nationwide Ventures, LLC 
                                    Olympus Advertising, Inc. 

JMD Advertising, Inc. 
Signature Group, LLC 

                                    Sermo Group, LLC 
Nicholas Scott Congleton 
Paul Daniel Pascual 

                                    Bryan Benjamin Walsh 
                                    Dylan Craig Loher (Relief Defendant) 
                                    CPW Funding, LLC (Relief Defendant) 

Assigned Attorneys:  Elizabeth O. Tucci (BCP/AP) 
                                    Katherine A. Campbell 

Mary L. Johnson 
Tawana E. Davis 

Alleged Conduct:  Deceptive acts or practices in violation of Section 5(a) and Section 12 in 
connection with the sale and marketing of purported dietary supplement 
Pure Green Coffee. 

Status:          Complaint filed 5/15/14. 
                                    Amended complaint filed 2/5/15. 

Joint motion for entry of stipulated order concerning assets of CPW 
Funding, LLC filed 3/10/15. 

Preliminary injunction and entry of stipulated order entered 3/23/15. 
Joint motion for preliminary injunction regarding Twelfth St Property  

filed 6/3/15. 
     Order granting motion for preliminary injunction 6/5/15. 

 Modified preliminary injunction and stipulated order entered 8/4/15. 
Joint motion for permanent injunction as to defendants NBP Advertising,  

Nationwide Ventures, Olympus Advertising, JMD Advertising,  
Sermo Group, Signature Group, Paul Daniel Pascual, Bryan  
Benjamin Walsh, and relief defendant CPW Funding filed  
11/16/15. 

Motion for summary judgment by Commission filed 12/12/15; defendant  
Nicholas Congleton’s opposition filed 1/8/16; Commission’s reply 
filed 1/13/16. 

   Stipulated permanent injunction and judgment against CPW Funding, 
LLC, JMD Advertising, Inc., NPB Advertising Inc., Nationwide 
Ventures, LLC, Olympus Advertising, Inc., Sermo Group, LLC, 
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   Order granting Commission’s motion to dismiss counterclaim and denying  
individual defendants’ motion to dismiss complaint entered  
11/3/15. 

   Motion for summary judgment by Commission filed 11/24/15. 
Commission’s motion to dismiss June Fleming voluntarily filed 3/11/16;  

    order granting motion to dismiss terminating June Fleming entered  
3/11/16. 

Order granting Commission’s motion for summary judgment as to 
defendants The Primary Group and Gail Daniels, and permanent 
injunction and equitable relief entered 5/19/16. 

Notice of appeal by Daniels filed 6/14/16.  
Appeal dismissed for want of prosecution on 10/7/16.  

FTC v. PSC ADMINISTRATIVE, LLC, No. 1:15-cv-84 (S.D. Ala.) 

Parties:  PSC Administrative, LLC, f/k/a Payday Support Center, LLC 
                                    Coastal Acquisitions, LLC 

Jared Irby 
Richard Hughes 

Assigned Attorneys:  Michelle Grajales (BCP/FP) 
                                    Miya Rahamim 

Alleged Conduct:  Violations of Section 5(a) of the FTC Act and the Telemarketing Sales    
                                    Rule in connection with the deceptive marketing and sale of debt relief  

services. 

Status:                          Complaint filed 2/18/15. 
                        Stipulated preliminary injunction entered 3/5/15. 

   Motion for summary judgment by Commission filed 2/19/16. 
   Amended complaint filed 3/22/16. 

Stipulated orders for permanent injunction and monetary judgment as to  
all defendants entered 9/17/16. 

FTC v. PUBLISHERS BUSINESS SERVICES, No. 11-17270 (9th Cir.); No. 2:08-cv-00620 
(D. Nev.) 

Parties:  Publishers Business Services, Inc. 
Ed Dantuma Enterprises, Inc. d/b/a Publishers Direct Services d/b/a 

Publishers Business Services 
Persis Dantuma 
Brenda Dantuma Schang 
Dries Dantuma 
Dirk Dantuma 
Jeffrey Dantuma 

Assigned Attorneys:  Faye Chen Barnouw (WRLA) 

68  



 

  
  
  
  
  
 

 
 

  
 

   
 
  

  
  
  
  
   
  
   
  
  
  
 

 

  
   
  
 

 
  
 

  
  
 

 
 

  
 

 

Maricela Segura  
Raymond E. McKown  
Jacob A. Snow (WRSF)  
Karen Goff  
Whitney Merrill  

Alleged Conduct:  Deceptive acts and practices in violation of section 5(a) and the  
  Telemarketing Sales Rule in connection with the marketing and sale of 
  magazine subscriptions. 

Status:  Complaint filed 5/14/08. 
Amended complaint filed 2/5/09. 
Commission’s motion for summary judgment filed 7/31/09; opposition  

filed 11/23/09; reply filed 12/7/09. 
Order granting the Commission’s motion for summary judgment entered  

4/7/10. 
Order for permanent injunction as to all defendants entered 4/7/10. 
Commission’s opening brief on the issue of damages filed 4/20/10. 
Final judgment as to all defendants entered 7/25/11. 
Commission’s opening brief filed 2/13/12; defendants’ answering brief 

filed 4/13/12; reply brief filed 5/11/12. 
Memorandum disposition remanding case to district court 

entered 9/19/13. 
Petition for writ of certiorari filed 2/27/14. 
Petition for writ of certiorari denied 6/9/14. 
Commission’s motion for judgment filed 5/31/16. 

FTC v. OMICS GROUP, INC., No. 2:16-cv-2022 (D. Nev.) 

Parties:  OMICS Group, Inc. d/b/a OMICS Publishing Group 
iMedPub, LLC 
Conference Series, LLC 
Srinubabu Gedela 

Assigned Attorneys:  Iona Rusu (BCP/FP) 
Gregory Ashe 

Alleged Conduct:   Deceptive acts and practices in violation of Section 5 of the FTC Act in  
connection with the publishing of online publications styled as academic  
journals. 

Status:  Complaint filed 8/25/16. 

FTC v. ROCA LABS, INC., No. 8:15-cv-02231 (M.D. Fla.)                                                            

Parties: Roca Labs, Inc. 
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Roca Labs Nutraceutical USA, Inc. 
   Don Juravin 

George C. Whiting 

Assigned Attorneys:  Carl H. Settlemyer (BCP/AP) 





 

 





 

 

 



      

 

 
 

 

                                   

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

Seventh Circuit Opinion affirming Trudeau contempt finding but vacating 
and remanding on monetary payment and other relief entered 
8/27/09. 

*  *  *  *  * 

Commission’s renewed motion to modify stipulated final order for 
permanent injunction as to defendant Trudeau filed 11/13/09; 
defendant’s response in opposition filed 12/17/09; Commission’s 
reply filed 2/1/10; defendant’s sur-reply filed 3/12/10. 

Commission’s renewed motion for compensatory monetary remedy as to 
defendant Trudeau filed 11/13/09; defendant’s response in 
opposition filed 12/17/09, supplemented 1/19/10; Commission’s 
reply filed 2/1/10; defendant’s sur-reply filed 3/12/10. 

Order finding defendant Trudeau in criminal contempt of court entered 
2/11/10; modified 2/17/10. 

Notice of appeal (10-1383) of criminal contempt order filed 2/17/10. 
Order staying payment of fine pending appeal entered 2/24/10. 
Trudeau’s motion to stay proceedings pending appeal filed 3/9/10; order 

denying motion entered 3/12/10. 
Supplemental order modifying the stipulated order for permanent 

injunction and awarding monetary relief entered 4/16/10.  
Trudeau’s motion to amend the supplemental order filed 4/22/10; 

Commission’s response in opposition filed 5/7/10; Trudeau’s reply 
filed 5/21/10; Commission’s sur-reply filed 6/1/10. 

Commission’s motion to amend the supplemental order filed 5/7/10; 
Trudeau’s response filed 5/21/10. 

Seventh Circuit Opinion (10-1383) vacating finding of criminal contempt 
and remanding for further proceedings entered 5/20/10. 

*  *  *  *  * 

Corrected supplemental order modifying the stipulated order for 
permanent injunction and awarding monetary relief entered 6/2/10. 

Notice of appeal (10-2418) of supplemental and corrected supplemental 
orders filed 6/11/10. 

Trudeau’s emergency motion for stay pending appeal filed 6/15/10; 
Commission’s response filed 6/23/10; Trudeau’s reply filed 
6/28/10; order denying motion filed 7/14/10. 

Trudeau’s brief filed 7/23/10; Commission’s brief filed 8/23/10; Trudeau’s 
reply filed 9/13/10. 

Oral argument held 9/24/10. 
Seventh Circuit opinion affirming contempt sanctions and modification of 

decree, issued 11/29/11. 
Trudeau’s petition for rehearing en banc filed 1/13/12; denied 1/30/12. 
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FTC v. VANTAGE POINT SERVICES, No. 1:15-cv-00006 (W.D.N.Y.) 

Parties:  Vantage Point Services, LLC 
                                    Payment Management Solutions, Inc. 
                                    Bonified Payment Solutions, Inc. 

Gregory Mackinnon 
Megan Vandeviver 
Angela Burdorf  
Joseph Ciffa  

Assigned Attorneys:  Helen Wong (BCP/FP)
   Greg Ashe 
   Jason  Adler  

Alleged Conduct:  Deceptive acts or practices in violation of Section 5(a) of the FTC Act and 
the Fair Debt Collection Practices Act in connection with debt collection 
activities.   

Status:          Complaint filed 1/5/15. 
TRO entered 1/5/15. 

   Preliminary injunction with asset freeze entered 5/15/15. 
   Commission’s motion for summary judgment filed 8/19/16. 

FTC v. VEMMA NUTRITION, No. 2:15-cv-01578 (D. Ariz.) 

Parties:  Vemma Nutrition Company 
Vemma International Holdings Inc. 
Benson K. Boreyko 
Tom Alkazin 
Bethany Alkazin 

Assigned Attorneys:  Angeleque P. Linville (SER) 
Anne Dorman LeJeune (SWR) 
Emily B. Robinson 
Jason C. Moon 

Alleged Conduct:  Deceptive acts or practices in violation of Section 5(a) of the FTC Act in 
connection with the operation of a pyramid scheme.  

Status:    Complaint filed 8/17/15.
   TRO entered 8/21/15. 

Order granting in part and denying in part the Commission’s motion for   
           preliminary injunction entered 9/18/15. 
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FTC v. VOLKSWAGEN GROUP OF AMERICA, INC., No. 3:16-cv-01534 (N.D. Cal.) 

Parties: Volkswagen Group of America, Inc. d/b/a Volkswagen of America, Inc.  
    d/b/a Audi of America, Inc. 

Assigned Attorneys: Jonathan C. Cohen (BCP/ENF) 
   Michelle L. Shaefer 
   Amanda B. Kostner 
   Sanjoon Han 
   Megan A. Bartley 

Alleged Conduct: Deceptive acts or practices in violation of Section 5(a) of the FTC Act in  
   connection with the false advertising of Defendant’s “Clean Diesel”  

vehicles. 

Status:   Complaint filed 3/29/16. 
Proposed partial stipulated order for permanent injunction and monetary 

judgment filed 6/28/16. 

FTC v. WILLIAMS, SCOTT & ASSOCIATES, LLC, No. 16-10063 (11th Cir.); No. 1:14-cv- 
1599 (N.D. Ga.) 

Parties:  Williams, Scott & Associates, LLC 
WSA, LLC 

                                      John Williams
 Chris Lenyszyn 

Assigned Attorneys:  Robin L. Rock (SER) 
  Brad Grossman (OGC) 

Alleged Conduct:  Deceptive and unfair acts or practices in violation of Section 5(a) of the 
FTC Act and the Fair Debt Collection Practices Act in connection with 
abusive and deceptive debt collection. 

Status:    Complaint filed 5/27/14. 
TRO with asset freeze entered 5/28/14. 
Stipulated preliminary injunction entered 6/19/14. 
Amended complaint filed 9/24/14. 
Commission’s motion to hold defendant John Williams in contempt 

for violations of the stipulated preliminary injunction order 
  filed 11/10/14; granted 12/2/14. 

Clerk’s entry of default as to John Williams; Williams Scott & 
Associates; and WSA LLC entered 12/12/14. 

Order imposing contempt sanctions against defendants John Williams; 
Williams Scott and Associates LLC and WSA LLC, as well as 
Sterling Ross and entities associated with it, entered 12/22/14. 
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Commission’s motion for default judgment against defendants John 
  Williams, Williams, Scott & Associates LLC, and WSA, LLC 
  filed 3/6/15. 

Default judgment and final order for permanent injunction against  
            defendants John Williams, Williams, Scott & Associates, LLC, and  

                        WSA, LLC entered 4/2/15. 
Motion for summary judgment against defendant Chris Lenyszyn filed  

  7/30/15; response in opposition filed 9/30/15. 
Order granting summary judgment in favor of Commission as to defendant 

Lenyszyn entered 11/4/15. 
Permanent injunction and final monetary judgment as to defendant   

    Chris Lenyszyn entered 11/4/15. 
Notice of appeal filed 1/4/16. 

   Appellant’s opening brief filed 4/18/16. 
   Order dismissing appeal entered 4/26/16; order granting motion to  
    reinstate appeal entered 6/8/16. 

Commission’s answering brief filed 7/7/16; Lenyszyn’s reply brief filed 
8/8/16. 

FTC v. WV UNIVERSAL MANAGEMENT, LLC, Nos. 15-11500, 15-13380 (11th Cir.); No.  
6:12-cv-01618 (M.D. Fla.) 

Parties:  WV Universal Management, LLC, d/b/a Treasure Your Success   
Leading Production, LLC 
Global Financial Assist, LLC 
HES Merchant Services Company, Inc. 
Business First Solutions, Inc. 
Voiceonyx Corp. 
Universal Processing Services of Wisconsin, LLC 
Derek Depuydt 
Hal E. Smith  
Jonathon E. Warren 
Ramon Sanchez-Ortega  
Willy Plancher 
Valbona Toska 

Assigned Attorneys:  Christopher Panek (ECR) 
   Fil M. de Banate 

Jonathan Kessler 
Michael Milgrom 

   Mark Hegedus (OGC) 
   Theodore Metzger 

Alleged Conduct:  Deceptive acts or practices in violation of Section 5 and the Telemarketing    
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CIVIL PENALTY AND ENFORCEMENT CASES * 

(A) Consumer Protection 

UNITED STATES v. CALEDONIA INVESTMENTS, PLC, No. 1:16-cv-1620 (D.D.C.) 

Parties:  Caledonia Investments, PLC 

Assigned Attorneys:  Kenneth Libby (BC/Compliance) 
   Daniel Ducore 
   Roberta Baruch 
   Jennifer  Lee  

Alleged Conduct:  Violations of the Hart-Scott Rodino Antitrust Improvement Act in  
connection with the acquisition of voting securities of Bristow Group, Inc. 

Status:    Complaint filed 8/10/16. 

FTC v. CARIBBEAN CRUISE LINE, No. 0:15-cv-60423 (S.D. Fla.) 

Parties:  Caribbean Cruise Line, Inc. 
Linked Services Solutions, LLC 

                                    Economic Strategy, LLC 
                                    Pacific Telecom Communications Group 
                                    International Telephone Corporation 
                                    International Telephone, LLC 

T M Caller ID, LLC 
                                    Telephone Management Corporation 
                                    Scott Broomfield 

Jason Birkett 
Jacob Dejongh 
Fred A. Accuardi 

                                    Steve Hamilton 

Assigned Attorneys:  Bikram Bandy (BCP/MP) 
Gary Ivens 

Alleged Conduct:  Violations of Section 5 of the FTC Act and the Telemarketing Sales Rule 
in connection with robocalls. 

* Includes all suits in which civil penalties are sought; consumer redress, injunctions, 
and ancillary equitable relief may also be sought. 
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Status:   Complaint filed 3/3/15. 
Motion by Commission to approve consent judgment as to defendants 

Caribbean Cruise Line, Inc., Linked Services Solutions, LLC,               
            Scott Broomfield, Jason Birkett, Economic Strategy, Jacob   
            Dejongh and Steve Hamilton filed 3/3/15. 
Amended complaint filed 5/18/15; counterclaim by Pacific Telecom
             Communications Group and International Telephone Corporation            

filed 6/2/15. 
Commission’s motion to dismiss counterclaim filed 8/13/15; response  

filed 9/4/15; reply filed 9/21/15. 
Unopposed motion to approve consent judgment by the Commission    

filed 9/18/15. 
Order denying Commission’s motion to dismiss counterclaims but  

    granting defendants’ motion to amend entered 3/28/16; amended  
counterclaim filed 4/9/16; Commission’s motion to dismiss  
counterclaims filed 8/16/16. 

Order referring case to mediation entered 4/14/16. 

UNITED STATES v. COMMERCIAL RECOVERY SYSTEMS, No. 4:15-cv-0036 (E.D. Tex.) 

Parties:      Commercial Recovery Systems, Inc. 
Timothy Ford 
David Devany 

Assigned Attorneys:  Anne D. Lejeune (SWR) 
                                    Heide L. Herrmann (DOJ) 

Alleged Conduct:  Violations of Section 5 of the FTC Act and the Fair Debt Collection 
                                    Practices Act in connection with collecting auto loan and credit card debts.  

Status:         Complaint filed 1/20/15. 
United States’ motion for summary judgment filed 12/18/15; order  

granting motion for summary judgment as to defendant Timothy  
Ford and CRS, and denying as to defendant David Devany entered 
4/7/16. 

Defendant David Devany’s motion for summary judgment filed 12/18/15;  
order denying motion for summary judgment entered 6/1/16. 

Order for permanent injunction as to defendants CRS and Timothy Ford  
entered 4/18/16. 

Stipulated order for permanent injunction and civil penalty judgment as to  
defendant David Devany entered 9/21/16. 

UNITED STATES v. DISH NETWORK LLC, No. 13-2282 (7th Cir.); 3:09-CV-03073 (C.D. 
Ill.) 

Parties:  Dish Network L.L.C. 
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Assigned Attorneys:  Russell Deitch (BCP/MP) 
Gary Ivens 
Patrick Runkle (DOJ/CPB) 
Lisa Hsiao 

Alleged Conduct:  Violations of Section 5 and the Telemarketing Sales Rule in connection 
with abandoned calls and telephone calls to consumers on the National Do 
Not Call registry. 

Status:          Complaint filed 3/25/09. 
Defendant’s motion to dismiss filed 5/21/09; plaintiff’s response in  
          opposition filed 7/17/09; defendant’s reply filed 7/27/09; plaintiff’s

 sur-reply filed 9/11/09. 
Order denying motion to dismiss entered 11/2/09. 
Defendant’s motion for reconsideration or interlocutory appeal filed  
           11/19/09; plaintiff’s response filed 12/22/09; order denying motion  

entered 2/4/10. 
Memorandum in opposition to motion/petition filed 5/21/10.  
Motion to compel 7/30/10; memorandum in opposition to motion 

8/16/10; memorandum in support of motion filed 9/24/10; order on 
motion to compel entered 12/9/10. 

Appeal of magistrate judge decision to district court filed 12/29/10. 
Defendants’ motion to stay action under doctrine of primary jurisdiction 

filed 12/21/10; opposition filed 1/12/11. 
Order directing the parties to file an administrative complaint with 

the FCC, to obtain its interpretation of statutory language 
entered 2/4/11. 

Order vacating magistrate’s decision denying Commission’s motion for  
             leave to file second amended complaint entered 3/12/13.  

                                    Amended complaint filed 3/12/13.  
Petition for writ of mandamus by Dish Network filed 6/12/13. 
Order denying petition for mandamus entered 7/3/13.  
United States’ motion for summary judgment filed 12/23/13; opposition 

filed 3/6/14. 
Motion for summary judgment by Dish Network filed 1/6/14; opposition 

filed 5/30/14. 
    United States’ motion for summary judgment filed 5/30/14.  

Order directing parties to file memoranda addressing issue of deference  
             to agency’s interpretation of its regulations entered 7/8/14; parties’ 
             memoranda of law filed 8/8/14; parties’ responses to each other’s 
             memoranda filed 8/22/14. 
Order granting partial summary judgment for United States and partial   
             summary judgment for Dish Network entered 12/12/14.  
Motion for sanctions by United States and state plaintiffs filed 7/20/15;   
             memorandum in opposition filed 8/21/15; reply filed 9/10/15; 
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order granting motion in part and denying in part entered 10/13/15. 
Trial held 1/19/16-2/17/16. 

UNITED STATES v. FEATURE FILMS FOR FAMILIES, INC. , Nos. 2:12-CV-00811, 2:11-
cv-00419 (D. Utah); No. 4:11-CV-00197 (N.D. Fla.) 

Parties:  Feature Films for Families, Inc. 
Corporations for Character LC 
Family Films of Utah, Inc. 
Forrest Sandusky Baker, III 

Assigned Attorneys:  Peter G. Fisher (AUSA) 
Jared C. Bennett 
Daniel M. Baeza (DOJ/CPB) 
Michael Tankersley (BCP) 
Arturo DeCastro 

Alleged Conduct:  Deceptive acts and practices in violation of Section 5 and the 
Telemarketing Sales Rule in connection with telemarketing to induce the 
purchase of goods or services, and to induce charitable contributions, 
telemarketing calls to consumers on the Do-Not-Call list. 

Status:  Complaint filed 5/5/11.   
Defendants’ motion to dismiss for failure to state a claim and for 

improper venue filed 7/25/11; United States’ memo in opposition 
filed 8/8/11; order denying motion entered 10/25/11. 

Defendants’ counterclaim against the United States filed 11/14/11. 
United States’ motion to dismiss counterclaims for lack of jurisdiction   

                        filed 12/21/11; response in opposition filed 1/09/12; motion denied  
5/19/12. 

Case transferred to the District of Utah 8/20/12.  
Case consolidated with Corporation for Character v. FTC, 

No. 2:11-CV-00419, on 9/6/12. 
Defendants’ motion for partial summary judgment filed 9/6/12; United 

States’ opposition filed 12/14/12. 
United States’ motion for partial summary judgment filed 3/1/13. 
United States’ second motion for partial summary judgment filed 5/17/13; 

opposition filed 7/19/13; reply filed 7/30/13. 
Hearing on motions for partial summary judgment held 1/16/14. 
United States’ supplemental memorandum regarding motion for summary 

  judgment filed 2/14/14; defendants’ reply to supplemental 
  memorandum filed 3/7/14. 

Order granting in part and denying in part defendants’ motion for partial 
summary judgment and granting in part and denying in part United 
States’ motion for partial summary judgment entered 3/31/15. 

Trial held 5/17 - 5/25/16.  
Jury verdict for Commission entered 5/26/16.  
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UNITED STATES v. INMOBI PTE, LTD, No. 3:16-cv-03474 (N.D. Cal.) 

Parties:  InMobi Pte, LTD 

Assigned Attorneys:  Nithan Sannapa (BCP/DPIP) 
   Jacqueline Connor 
   Jacqueline Blaesi-Freed (DOJ/CPB) 

Alleged Conduct:  Violations of Section 5of the FTC Act and the Children’s Online Privacy  
Protection Act in connection with the use of WiFi network information to 
geo-target consumers. 



 

     

  

     

 

     

 

 

 

    

 

                                    

 

 

 

                                     

 

 

 

 

 
 

  

Assigned Attorneys:  Susan E. Arthur (SWR) 

Alleged Conduct:  Violations of Section 5(a) of the FTC Act in connection with the deceptive 
promotion or offering for sale of Viatek Mosquito Shield Bands. 

Status:         Complaint filed 2/17/15. 
Stipulated order for permanent injunction and monetary judgment entered 

6/6/16. 

UNITED STATES v. NEW WORLD AUTO IMPORTS, INC., No. 3:16-cv-2401 (N.D. Tex.) 

Parties:   New World Auto Imports, Inc. d/b/a Southwest Kia 
                                     New World Auto Imports of Rockwall, Inc. d/b/a Southwest Kia,   

Southwest Kia of Rockwall 
 Hampton Two Auto Corporation d/b/a Southwest Kia, Southwest Kia- 

                                                NW, Southwest Kia Mesquite 

Assigned Attorneys:  Michelle Schaeffer (BCP/ENF) 
Colin MacDonald 

                                     Jacqueline Blaesi-Freed (DOJ/CPB) 

Alleged Conduct:  Violations of Sections 5 and 16 of the FTC Act, the Truth in Lending Act,  
and the Consumer Leasing Act in connection with advertisements 
containing false and misleading representations about the cost of buying or 
leasing a car. 

Status:         Complaint filed 8/18/16. 
Stipulated order for permanent injunction and civil penalty judgment  

entered 8/22/16. 

FTC v. ROSS-CLAYTON FUNERAL HOME, INC., No. 2:13-cv-851 (M.D. Ala.) 

Parties:  Ross-Clayton Funeral Home, Inc. 
David C. Ross 
Eleanor Lewis Dawkins 

Assigned Attorneys:  P. Connell McNulty (BCP/MP) 
Patricia Hsue 

Alleged Conduct:  Violations of the Commission’s Trade Regulation Rule Concerning 
Funeral Industry Practices by failing to show people a printed or 
typewritten casket price list. 

Status:  Complaint filed 11/21/13. 
Defendants’ motion to dismiss filed 1/28/14; denied 5/7/15. 
Commission’s motion for summary judgment filed 4/27/15; defendants’ 
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opposition filed 6/30/15. 
Defendants’ counterclaim against the Commission filed 6/23/15. 
Commission’s motion to strike counterclaim filed 8/24/15; opposition    
            filed 9/11/15; reply filed 9/14/15. 
Motions for default judgment and summary judgment by the    



 

                      

 

 

 

 

 
  

   
   

 

 
    

 
 

 

 

 

 

   
   
 

 
 

 

Assigned Attorneys: 





     

 

 

 
  

   
   

 

 
  

 

 
 

 

  
 

 

 

 

 

 
 

Alleged Conduct:  Petition to enforce CIDs. 

Status: Petition to enforce CIDs filed 3/9/16. 
Defendants’ response filed 4/25/16; Commission’s reply filed 4/29/16. 
Show cause hearing held on 5/3/16. 
Commission’s motion to compel production filed 6/16/16; order granting  

motion entered 8/15/16; defendants’ objection to order filed 
9/15/16; Commission’s response filed 9/22/16. 

FTC v. INDIVIOR, INC. (RECKITT BENCKISER PHARMACEUTICALS, INC.), No. 3:14-
mc-00005 (E.D. Va.) 

Parties:  Indivior f/k/a Reckitt Benckiser Pharmaceuticals, Inc. 

Assigned Attorneys:  Burke W. Kappler (OGC) 

Alleged Conduct:  Petition for an order to enforce a CID. 

Status:   Petition filed 8/8/14. 
Reckitt Benckiser Pharmaceuticals’ motion to transfer filed 9/3/14; 

Commission’s brief in opposition to motion to transfer filed 
9/12/14; order denying motion to transfer entered 9/24/14. 

Commission’s motion to enforce CID filed 11/24/14; Reckitt’s brief in 
opposition filed 12/8/14; Commission’s reply brief filed 12/15/14. 

Memorandum Opinion directing Reckitt to produce documents for in  
camera review by Special Master entered 3/10/15. 

Parties’ replies to Special Master filed 4/24/15; evidentiary hearing held 
5/8/15. 

Special Master’s motion for clarification filed 5/28/15; order denying 
Reckitt’s position on scope of in camera review entered 6/1/2015. 

In chambers conference held on 9/9/2015.  
Interim report and recommendation by Special Master entered 2/9/16. 
Supplemental report by Special Master directing Reckitt to produce  

additional documents entered 3/31/16. 
Commission’s motion asking district court to adopt Special Master’s 

report and recommendation filed 4/25/16. 
Opinion and order adopting the Special Master’s findings and directing 

Reckitt to produce over 3,700 documents no later than 8/15/16 
entered 8/1/16. 

Conference between parties and Special Master regarding procedures for 
review of remaining 19,000 documents held 8/8/16. 

FTC v. LEXIUM INTERNATIONAL, LLC, No. 2:16-mc-00026 (M.D. Fla.) 

Parties:  Lexium International, LLC 
   Cellmark Biopharma, LLC 
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Assigned Attorney:  Brad Grossman (OGC) 

Alleged Conduct:   Petition for an order to enforce CIDs. 

Status:    Petition filed 9/16/16. 

FTC v. THE WESTERN UNION CO., Nos. 13-3100, 13-3272 (2d. Cir.); No.1:13-MC-00131 
(S.D.N.Y) 

Parties:  The Western Union Company 
Lonnie Keene 
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Status:  Petition filed 2/12/16; Tracer’s response filed 3/23/16; Commission’s 
reply filed 3/28/16. 

Show cause hearing held on 5/2/16. 
Order enforcing CID entered 6/10/16. 

SUITS TO ENJOIN FTC ACTION AN D OTHER DEFENSIVE LITIGATION 

CENTER FOR DIGITAL DEMOCRACY v. FTC, No. 1:14-cv-02084 (D.D.C.) 

Parties:  Center for Digital Democracy 

Assigned Attorneys:  Marian L. Borum (AUSA) 
                                    Bradley Grossman (OGC) 

Nature of the Action:  Freedom of Information Act action regarding the release of records. 

Status:  



      

                      

 

      

 

  

  

                                    

                                   

                                    

 
 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

  
 

Jeffrey E. Sandberg (DOJ/CIV) 

Nature of Action:  Action for declaratory and injunctive relie



 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 
  

        
 

 
 

 
 

  
                                       

 
    

 

 

 
 

     
   
 

Oral argument held 9/7/16. 

REITINGER v. FTC, No. 1:15-cv-00725 (D.D.C.) 

Parties:  Philip Reitinger 

Assigned Attorneys:  Burke Kappler (OGC) 
   Michele Arington 

Arjun Garg (DOJ) 

Nature of Action:  Action alleging violation of Freedom of Information Act. 

Status:    Complaint filed 5/13/15. 
Answer to complaint filed by the Commission 6/15/15. 
Non-exempt document production by the Commission 7/21/15. 
Joint status report filed 7/30/15. 
Status conference held 9/8/15. 
Joint status reports filed 11/27/15, 1/20/16, 2/22/16, 6/6/16, and 7/30/16. 
Final production made by Commission 8/1/16. 

AMICUS CURIAE BRIEFS or  PARTIAL INTERVENTIONS 

BOCK v. PRESSLER &  PRESSLER, No. 15-1056 (3d Cir.) 

Assigned Attorneys:  Jack Metzler (OGC) 

Nature of Action:  Private action concerning debt-collection law firm’s alleged violations of 
the Fair Debt Collection Practices Act by using an automated process to 
file lawsuits, with no meaningful involvement by an attorney. 

Status:  Brief of the Consumer Financial Protection Bureau and the Federal Trade  
        Commission as amici curiae in support of appellee filed 8/13/15. 

   Reply brief filed 9/8/15. 
Oral argument held 11/9/15. 
Order remanding case to district court for additional fact-finding entered 

7/27/16. 

IN RE EFFEXOR XR ANTITRUST LITIGATION, Nos. 15-1184, 15-1185, 15-1186, 15-
1187, 15-1274, 15-1323, 15-1342 (3d Cir.)  

Assigned Attorneys:  Michele Arington (OGC) 

Nature of Action:  Private action raising the question of whether drug companies’ reverse- 
payment agreement was shielded from antitrust scrutiny on the basis of 
FTC inaction and patent court’s entry of stipulated judgment. 
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Status:  Brief of the Federal Trade Commission as amicus curiae supporting 
plaintiffs-appellants filed 11/17/15. 

Answering brief of appellee drug companies filed 2/16/16. 
 Commission’s supplemental amicus brief filed 3/17/16. 

Oral argument on issue of jurisdiction held 9/27/16. 

FRANKLIN v. PARKING REVENUE RECOVERY SERVICES, No. 14-3774 (7th Cir.) 

Assigned Attorneys:  Leslie Melman (OGC) 

Nature of Action:  Private action concerning whether the Fair Debt Collection Practices Act  
   (FDCPA) applies to collection letters for unpaid parking lot fees sent to  

consumers, and if unpaid parking lot fees are “debts” as defined in the  
   FDCPA.  

Status: Brief of the Consumer Financial Protection Bureau and the Federal Trade 
    Commission as amici curiae arguing the reversal of the district  

court’s ruling filed 12/11/15. 
Opinion reversing district court entered 8/10/16. 

HERNANDEZ v. WILLIAMS, ZINMAN & PARHAM, P.C., No. 14-15672 (9th Cir.) 

Assigned Attorneys:  Burke Kappler (OGC) 

Nature of Action:  Private action involving provision of Fair Debt Collection Practices Act 
   requiring that debt collectors provide notice to consumers advising 

them of their rights to dispute or obtain verification of the debt. 

Status:  Brief of the Consumer Financial Protection Bureau and the Federal Trade 
Commission as amici curiae in support of appellant and reversal   

filed 8/20/14. 
Answering brief of Williams, Zinman & Parham LLC filed 11/28/14.

   Reply brief of Maria Hernandez filed 1/8/15. 
   Oral argument held 3/17/16. 

Opinion reversing district court entered 7/20/16. 

MORAN v. THE SCREENING PROS, No. 12-57246 (9th Cir.) 

Assigned Attorney:  Jack Metzler (OGC) 

Nature of Action:        Private action involving a Fair Credit Reporting Act provision limiting 
the time period for listing misdemeanors on a report. 

Status: Brief of the Consumer Financial Protection Bureau and the Federal Trade  
          Commission as amici curiae filed in support of plaintiff’s Section  
          605(a) claim filed 10/7/13. 
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                        Argument held 2/2/15.   

MYLAN PHARMACEUTICALS INC.  v. WARNER CHILCOTT PLC, No. 15-2236 (3d Cir.)  

Assigned Attorneys: Mark Hegedus (OGC) 

Alleged Conduct:   Private action addressing the question of whether, and to what extent, 
                        product hopping constitutes exclusionary conduct in the generic drug  
                        market.  

Status: Brief of the Federal Trade Commission arguing reversal of district court’s 
summary judgment ruling filed 9/30/15. 

Oral argument scheduled for 7/14/16. 
Opinion affirming district court entered 9/28/16. 

IN RE NEXIUM ANTITRUST LITIGATION, Nos. 15-2005, 15-2006, 15-2007 (1st Cir.) 

Assigned Attorney:  Mark Hegedus (OGC) 

Nature of Action:  Private action urging appeals court to correct district court’s holding that  
   proving injury-in-fact is necessary to establish an antitrust  

violation. 

Status:  Brief of the Federal Trade Commission as amicus curiae filed 2/12/16. 

RIVERA v. JPMORGAN CHASE BANK, No. 16-7008 (D.C. Cir.) 

Assigned Attorney:  Jack Metzler (OGC) 

Alleged Conduct:  Private action urging appeals court to correct district court’s holding that  
appellant Rivera’s claim under 15 U.S.C. § 1681s-2(b) was barred by the 
FCRA’s statute of limitations. 

Status:  Brief of the Federal Trade Commission as amicus curiae filed 6/7/16. 
Order granting joint motion to voluntarily dismiss appeal entered 7/14/16. 

TELEDOC v. TEXAS MEDICAL BOARD, No. 16-50017 (5th Cir.) 

Assigned Attorney:  Michele Arington (OGC) 

Alleged Conduct:  Private action urging appeals court to dismiss the appeal for lack of  
jurisdiction, or if the court finds jurisdiction, to reject application of the  
state action doctrine to this case because the active supervision  
requirement is not satisfied.  

Status:  Brief of the Federal Trade Commission as amicus curiae filed 9/9/16. 
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IN RE WELLBUTRIN XL ANTITRUST LITIGATION , Nos. 15-3559, 15-3591, 15-3681, 15-
3682 (3d Cir.) 

Assigned Attorney:  Mark Hegedus (OGC) 

Alleged Conduct:  Private action urging appeals court to correct legal errors in 
district court’s antitrust analysis of reverse-payment agreement. 

Status:  Brief of the Federal Trade Commission as amicus curiae filed 3/11/16. 
                                     Oral argument held 9/7/16. 

WOODMAN’S FOOD MARKET, INC. v. CLOROX CO., No. 15-3001 (7th Cir.) 

Assigned Attorney:  Brad Grossman (OGC) 

Alleged Conduct:    Private action addressing the question of whether large package sizes are a  
promotional service under Section 2(e) of the Robinson-Patman Act.  

Status:  Brief of the Federal Trade Commission arguing reversal of district court’s 
summary judgment ruling filed 11/2/15. 

Oral argument held 2/12/16. 
Opinion reversing district court entered 8/12/16. 
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